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Results

(expressed in RMB'000)

Revenue

Gross profit

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Basic earnings per share (in RMB)

Earnings before interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation
("EBITDA")

Financial Positions
(expressed in RMB’000)

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets per share (in RMB)

Financial Ratios

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Gearing ratio

Average capital employed
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Notes 2012
1,003,895
261,603
159,182
1 0.188
251,014
2 960,610
3 192,819
4 0.907
5 2.3
6 1.9
7 3.1%
8 33.0%
Notes:
1 Basic earnings
per share
2 Total assets

3 Total liabilities

4 Net assets
per share
5 Current ratio

6 Quick ratio

7 Gearing ratio

8 Return on capital
employed
("ROCE")

Average capital
employed

—ET-Zf  —EF —T-HF CZEB-xE
2013 2014 2015 2016
1,195,178 1,121,127 1,123,408 1,265,389
342,888 284,172 316,889 396,301
188,086 154,505 172,371 219,603
0.222 0.182 0.204 0.259
320,563 279,007 318,752 407,695
1,105,465 1,230,982 1,382,766 1,620,560
175,383 176,565 204,766 302,933
1.098 1.245 1.391 1.553

2.9 3.7 3.7 3.0

2.4 3.1 3.2 2.5
TEANA  TEENA  TEANA  TEANA
33.6% 30.5% 26.8% 29.0%

Profit attributable to owners of the Company +
Weighted average of issued shares of the
Company for the year. (The calculation of basic
earnings per share is based on the weighted
average number of 846,878,000, 846,878,000,
846,878,000, 846,878,000 and 847,574,721
shares of the Company for the five years ended
31 December 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016
respectively.)

Non-current assets + Current assets
Non-current liabilities + Current liabilities

Total equity =+ Number of issued shares of the Company
at the year end. (As at 31 December 2012, 2013,
2014, 2015 and 2016 the calculation of net assets per
share is based on the number of issued shares of the
Company of 846,878,000, 846,878,000, 846,878,000,
846,878,000 and 848,698,000 respectively.)

Current assets = Current liabilities
(Current assets — Inventories) + Current liabilities

Net debts (Total borrowings net of bank and cash
balances and pledged bank deposits) + Total equity

EBITDA / (Total equity — non-current debt financing)

(Opening ROCE + Closing ROCE) / 2
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GROSS PROFIT (RMB’000)

BRBARKFT)
REVENUE (RVB'000)

226,705

2016
195,215

2015 (@) 928,193 2015 316,889
208,795

2014 . 912,332 2014 284,172
165,031

2013 (@) 1,030,147 2013 342,888
216,616

2012 () 787,279 2012 261,603
® 5 i

Overseas The PRC

REtFIE - BiE -
TERBENRR ARETFT)

RATEEABEBER AREFT)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (RM8000)

EBITDA (rRMB’000)

2016 407,695

2015 172,371 2015 318,752
2014 154,505 2014 279,007
2013 188,086 2013 320,563

2012 169,182 2012 251,014
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

Despite the increasing complexity of the global landscape and the
uncertain economic outlook in 2016, the Group has been committed
to seeking for stability and growth amidst changes and challenges, and
fruitful achievements have been gained accordingly. On behalf of the
Board, | am pleased to present the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2016. In 2016, revenue of the Group increased by 12.6% to
approximately RMB1,265.4 million (the same below) as compared with
the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit increased by 25.1%
to approximately RMB396.3 million as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately RMB219.6 million, representing a year on year increase of
27.4%.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) of
Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
(the “Company” and together with
its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the year ended 31
December 2016.

During the year under review, revenue and profit of the Group were
improved and the financial position remained stable due to the Group’s
continuous efforts on the horizontal and vertical integration of business
and the strategic orientation of extending the industry chain, as well as
other favourable factors including the lowered prices of raw materials
in the first half of the year. Apart from the successful initiatives on the
further enhancement of production automation and production efficiency,
the Group completed the acquisition of Jiangsu Chunxiao Pharmaceutical
& Chemical Co., Ltd. )T & & ¥ 2 21 T B £ B B 2 7 ("Jiangsu
Chunxiao”) in the fourth quarter. Jiangsu Chunxiao uses one of the
Group’s key products, MCYA, as raw materials for its production activities.
The acquisition of Jiangsu Chunxiao is among the key steps in the Group’s
business strategy of extending its products chain to a more diversified
product mix, thus expanding the downstream business of major products,
helping increase the Group’s income and strengthening its market share
and competitiveness in the area of medical intermediates.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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With respect to productivity enhancement, the Group adjusted and
increased the capacity of certain cyanide products during the year under
review to meet the demands from markets and customers, which in
part contributed to the increase in sales volume and profit of the Group.
Besides, in light of the new market trend, the Group also laid out plans
for the future conversion of production capacities and set a goal for
further growth, and will make flexible arrangements according to actual
conditions, so as to provide long-term driving force and support for the
Group's sustainable development.

In the meantime, the Group continued to reinforce its sales team and
also consolidated and strengthened its internal structure. Satisfactory
achievements have been made in attracting new customers and
increasing sales volume of existing products. The Group established a
specific team for newly developed major products, and the sales volume
of such products was increased effectively during the year under review.
One of the key strategies of the Group is to keep exploring new markets
for its major business by capitalising on the traditionally advantageous
products and businesses. Through the continuous training of research
and development talents and investment in research and development
equipment, the Group is working on the development of new products
and the subsequent market surveys in an orderly manner while identifying
and assessing new market opportunities and potential sources for the
future growth. The Board is confident in the existing strategic planning
and business layout of the Group, and believes that it is well-prepared for
the requirements and challenges in the market of the next stage.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global trade and economic conditions are expected
to remain challenging because of the uncertain political situation and
the varied policies of individual countries. The economy of China will
still be faced with downward pressure and threatened by the increasing
financial risks. In addition, the ever increasing prices of raw materials and
transportation costs will bring about certain operating challenges for
manufacturers, including those in the chemical industry. Accordingly, the
management of the Group holds a cautiously optimistic view towards the
future and will deal with issues and difficulties arising from the course
of business in a flexible manner. While enjoying the business advantages
originated from the vertical industry chain, the Group will continue to
develop new products with proprietary intellectual property rights and
core competitiveness in a planned and targeted manner to enhance the
penetration of its products chain. Given the healthy financial position and
strong cash inflow, the Group is allowed to keep focusing on enhancing
production efficiency while strengthening the environmental protection
and production safety measures. Leveraging the well-established market
position, the market share accumulated over the years and the leading
production technology and R&D capability, the Group will pursue
sustainable and healthy development in the year to come as well as in
the long run in a pragmatic way, so as to present satisfactory operating
results and business growth to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).
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DIVIDEND

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK$0.08 (2015: HK$0.075) per
ordinary shares of the Company (the “Share”) for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016. Subject to the approval by the Shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
dividend is tentatively to be distributed to the Shareholders on or about
29 June 2017. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.04 (2015:
HK$0.025) per Share was paid to the Shareholders during the year, the
total dividends for the year under review is HK$0.12 (2015: HK$0.1) per
Share.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my gratitude to our employees for their relentless
efforts and my fellow Directors and the management team for their
commitment and dedication during the year. | also thank our customers,
suppliers, shareholders and cooperating banks of the Company for their
continuous supports. The success of the Group would not have been
possible without their contribution, efforts and trust in us.

On behalf of the Board
Gao Feng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO Feng, aged 55, is the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”). He
is responsible for the overall strategic development, business planning
and policy setting of the Group. He graduated from Tsinghua University
with a degree of Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering and a postgraduate
of Precision Instrument in 1985 and 1987 respectively. Mr. Gao had been
worked for Sojitz (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. from 1988 to January 2015. He had
been promoted as deputy general manager of Sojitz (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.
since 2004. Mr. Gao joined the Group in February 2015. He has nearly 30
years of experience in the chemical industry.

GUO Xitian, aged 55, is an executive Director and a general manager
of the Company. He is responsible for the management and supervision
of the overall operation of the Group. He graduated from East China
Petroleum Institute (now known as China University of Petroleum) in
1982, majoring in basic organic chemistry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Guo had been working in Shandong Zibo Dongfeng Chemical Factory.
Mr. Guo joined the Group in March 1999. Mr. Guo has over 30 years of
experience in the chemical industry.

WANG Zijiang, aged 52, is an executive Director and one of the
founders of the Group. He graduated from Nanjing Chemical College
(now known as Nanjing University of Technology) in 1988, majoring in
chemical engineering. He worked three years since 1991 in Weifang New
Technology Research Centre. After that, Mr. Wang co-founded Weifang
Tianhong Equity Investment Company Limited (“Weifang Tianhong”) in
1996. Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in the chemical industry.

SUN Zhenmin, 3ged 40, is the chief engineer and a member of the
safety and environmental protection committee of the Company. Mr. Sun
is primarily responsible for the overall product research and development,
project design and construction of the Group. He graduated from the
China University of Petroleum with a bachelor’s degree in fine chemicals
and a postgraduate degree of chemical engineering in 1999 and 2010,
respectively. Mr. Sun was awarded the title of Outstanding Young
Entrepreneur of Weifang city (#3MEFSFHER) in 2013. Mr. Sun
joined the Group in 1999. He has over 15 years of experience in the
chemical industry.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO Baoyu, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 4 October 2006. He is the professor of
environmental engineering and the tutor of the postgraduate students
studying for doctorate degrees of Shandong University since September
1999 and November 2001 respectively. He was also the dean of the
school of environmental science and engineering of Shandong University
from January 2001 to November 2012. Mr. Gao was awarded by
Shandong Provincial People’s Government as one of the Middle-aged and
Young Expert with Outstanding Contributions in Shandong Province in
2007. He graduated from Tsinghua University in 1999 with a doctorate
degree in engineering majoring in environment engineering.

LEUNG Kam Wan, aged 51, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 1 March 2007. Mr. Leung graduated from
Hong Kong Baptist University and Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance and a
master degree in corporate governance in 1992 and 2007 respectively.
Mr. Leung is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Leung has been a practicing certified public accountant
for over 10 years. He has extensive experience in financing, accounting
and auditing. Mr. Leung currently is the managing director of Leung Kam
Wan CPA Limited and a director of CCTH CPA Limited.

LIU Chenguang, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 4 October 2006. Mr. Liu obtained from East
China Petroleum Institute (now known as China University of Petroleum)
a bachelor’s degree in science majoring in petroleum refining in 1982
and a master’s degree in applied chemistry in 1985. He also obtained his
doctorate degree in applied chemistry from China University of Petroleum
(Beijing) in 1991. Mr. Liu has been appointed as an associate professor of
China University of Petroleum in 1992, was then promoted as a professor
in 1994 and subsequently took on the post as the tutor of postgraduate
students studying for doctorate degrees in 1998 and has ever since
become the professor and tutor at China University of Petroleum. Mr. Liu
was the dean of the college of chemical engineering of China University
of Petroleum from May 2004 to April 2013. Currently, he is a professor
of the college of chemical engineering of China University of Petroleum.
Mr. Liu is a member of China Petroleum Society, China Chemistry Society,
China Chemical Society, American Chemistry Society and director of
Shandong Chemistry and Chemical Society.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
increased by 12.6% to approximately RMB1,265.4 million, as compared
with approximately RMB1,123.4 million in 2015. Such healthy growth
was mainly attributable to (i) the contribution from a newly acquired
subsidiary in the second half of 2016; and (ii) embracing an effective
sales and marketing strategy promoted the growth of sales volume of the
Group even though the overall weighted average selling price recorded a
decrease under challenging market conditions.

Gross Profit

The gross profit of the Group reached approximately RMB396.3 million,
representing an increase of 25.1% as compared with approximately
RMB316.9 million in 2015 while the gross profit margin also improved
to 31.3% when compared with 28.2% in 2015. The satisfactory
improvements were mainly attributable to (i) the magnitude of decrease in
material costs outpaced the decline of selling prices; (i) more automated
production process achieved lower production costs; and (iii) continuous
production process advancement and optimisation enhancing the overall
production effectiveness during the year under review.

Operating Income and Expenses

The other income was mainly comprised of (i) exchange net gain; (ii)
release of deferred income; (iii) bank interest income; (iv) government
grants; and (v) other miscellaneous income during the year under review.

The selling expenses increased by approximately RMB8.3 million to
approximately RMB43.7 million (2015: RMB35.4 million) during the
year under review. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in
transportation costs in respond to the increased in sales volume and the
increase in staff costs. The selling expenses as a percentage of the Group’s
revenue was 3.5% (2015: 3.2%).

During the year under review, the administrative and other operating
expenses increased by approximately RMB5.6 million from approximately
RMB44.7 million in 2015 to approximately RMB50.3 million. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in staff costs. Administrative and other
operating expenses expressed as a percentage of the Group's revenue
was 4.0% (2015: 4.0%).

Finance Costs

Finance costs mainly represented bank borrowings interest, which
increased by approximately RMBO.1 million from approximately RMB1.1
million in 2015 to approximately RMB1.2 million in 2016. The increase
was mainly due to an increase in average bank borrowings and interest
borrowings rate during the year under review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Fair Value Gain on Derivative Financial Instruments

On 30 June 2011, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement
(the "JV Agreement”) with Henkel Hong Kong Limited (“Henkel”) to set
up a JV Company for developing a specialty chemical for an industrial use
product and the JV Agreement became effective from 23 February 2012.
Under the JV Agreement, (i) the Company was granted with a call option
to require Henkel to sell or cause the sale of all of the equities of the JV
Company held by Henkel and/or its affiliates to the Company at the call
option price; and (ii) Henkel was granted with a put option to require
the Company to purchase or cause the purchase of all of the equities
of the JV Company held by Henkel and/or its affiliates at the put option
price. Such options can only be exercised during the option period set on
specified future dates (please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 3 July 2011 for details). Thus, the JV Agreement is deemed to
contain embedded derivative which is required to be carried at fair value
under Hong Kong financial reporting standards. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the fair value gain on the embedded derivative financial
instruments was, determined by an independent valuer adopting a
binomial lattice model at, approximately RMB10.3 million (2015: RMB3.2
million).

Details of the embedded derivative financial assets/liabilities are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Profit for the Year

The profit of the Group for the year has increased by approximately
RMB47.1 million to approximately RMB219.5 million, representing an
increase of 27.3% as compared with that of approximately RMB172.4
million in 2015.

Trade and Bills Receivable

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables increased to approximately
RMB184.0 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB24.2
million or 15.1% as compared with approximately RMB159.8 million
recorded as at 31 December 2015. About 86.3% of trade receivables
were incurred in the last quarter of 2016 and most of them are not yet
due and 12.1% of trade receivables were incurred in the third quarter of
2016. Only 1.6% of trade receivables are over due 180 days. Up to the
date of this report, over 79% of trade receivables have been settled. Thus,
the Directors considered that no further bad debt allowance is required
on the balance of trade receivables as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, bills receivable amount of approximately
RMB248.0 million, slightly increased by approximately RMB13.2 million or
5.6% as compared with the balance of approximately RMB234.8 million
as at 31 December 2015. Since all bills receivable are bank acceptance
bills, which are non-interest bearing and most of them have a maximum
maturity period of six months, the payments of which were guaranteed
by the licensed banks in the PRC with the lowest default risk. Accordingly,
the Directors considered that no allowance for doubtful debt is required.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited




BEER R

Management Discussion and Analysis

B EIRE (4F)
KEHASRAT R

FrERBRITERNEDBER - ESFIRE
MABEE  (EEREBRNARBRENEE
2 MNIT—RE+-A=+—H8  EHRTEX
#HNE 49 A R #56,800,000T © MR T —RF
TZA=ZT BB AR 32,100,000 7T
B OFE A AR 24,700,00005,77.2% 0+
FHFrERRARIN - AEARPREATHE

PN
Sl

RBEERIMKEER
REBZ7TEESRERELEFTHELEZFHR
ERALARBE 241,100,000 (ZZ—FE : A
R %199,400,0007T) * ¥TILIRITIER N AR
56,800,0007C ( —Z— R F : A R#¥49,700,000
J0) * FEIERR R E R A A R 3,400,000 0T (=&
—RF &) BIOROGFRALARE 2,300,000
T(ZE—RF: 8) BRRITHEHARE
1,800,000t ( Z & — A F: A K #1,700,000
JT) ~ B R BE 49 A R 1,300,000T (=&
—FHE: ARMA4,000,0007T) AR ATERE
MEAR®E400,000 (ZE—HF &) HE
W - BB REETERIELH AR 100,0007T
—ZT—FF : ARE1,0007T) K—RIEEREARE
SFEHANRE2,0007T (ZE—RE : ) o BER
EELEMSMBER  EFREFEAN AEEF
EHAREES2,000,000c (ZZE—HEFE: AR
99,100,0007T) HEAMIZE - MR Mk - WM B
NELARE39,100,0007T (ZZE—R4F : #|) -
EBIFITEZRHARYE33,000,000T (ZE—F
F: AR¥49,500,00070) * ZHFEHARE
1,200,0007T (ZE—F4F : ARE#¥1,100,0007T)
VA R IR A RS B 40 A R #583,900,0007T (—ZZE—H
F: AR®48,000,0007T) c RZZE—X"F+A
=+—H AEEMNETERRSEHRNHABARE
184,300,0007T (ZZE—AHF : ARK 117,700,000
TL) * HAFA73% AARES - 449% LAETLHF
B ERRILVEB EEULREE - A5BERBETE
WS AT T AES H AR -

MN-BE-RFE+-A=+—8 "&EEHER
BEFEHARKS549,000,0007T (ZE—FEF :
AR 486,100,0007T) * mBILLERL3.0EF (=ZF
—hF 371 RBEFRHARE60,200,0007T
ZE—FF: AR¥32,100,0007T) © ANEEF
BHEROPERL R R"Ft+_A=+—
H  ZRe&% (MReRBReSEBEENAHE
BB AEE) =X ARE 124,100,000 T (= F
—FRF : AR¥85,600,0007T) °

RELCTERBRRR TR FFER

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Short Term Bank Borrowings

All short term bank borrowings were arose in Hong Kong at floating
interest rates and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars to finance the
dividend payments of the Company in Hong Kong. As at 31 December
2016, short term bank borrowings increased to approximately RMB56.8
million, representing a net increase of approximately RMB24.7 million
or 77.2% as compared with the balance of an approximately RMB32.1
million as at 31 December 2015. Such an increase is mainly attributable
to the financing the payment of final dividend of 2015.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included the net cash inflow
generated from operating activities of approximately RMB241.1 million
(2015: RMB199.4 million); newly raised bank borrowings of approximately
RMB56.8 million (2015: RMB49.7 million); loan from a non-controlling
shareholder of approximately RMB3.4 million (2015: Nil); net proceed
of issue of shares of approximately RMB2.3 million (2015: Nil); bank
interest received of approximately RMB1.8 million (2015: RMB1.7 million);
government grants received of approximately RMB1.3 million (2015:
RMB4.0 million); loan repayment from joint venture of approximately
RMBO.4 million (2015: Nil); proceeds on disposals of property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMBO.1 million (2015: RMB1,000); and
capital injection from a non-controlling shareholder of approximately
RMB2,000 (2015: Nil). With the financial resources obtained from
the Group’s operations, the Group had spent approximately RMB82.0
million (2015: RMB99.1 million) in the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment; acquisition of a subsidiary of approximately RMB39.1 million
(2015: Nil); repayments of bank borrowings of approximately RMB33.0
million (2015: RMB49.5 million); interest paid of approximately RMB1.2
million (2015: RMB1.1 million) and dividend paid of approximately
RMB83.9 million (2015: RMB48.0 million) during the year under review.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately RMB184.3 million (2015: RMB117.7 million), of which
47.3% was held in Renminbi, 44.9% was held in United States dollars
and the remaining balances were held in Hong Kong dollars and euros.
During the year under review, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for any hedging purposes.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had recorded net current assets of
approximately RMB549.0 million (2015: RMB486.1 million), the current
ratio of the Group was approximately 3.0 times (2015: 3.7 times), and
total borrowings of approximately RMB60.2 million (2015: RMB32.1
million). The Group retains its strong financial position and attained a
net cash balance of approximately RMB124.1 million (total cash and
cash equivalent net of total borrowings) as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB85.6 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

With continuous positive net cash inflow generated from its operations
and the available cash resources on hand and undrawn banking facilities
from its banks, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
present commitments and working capital requirements. The Group
will continuously monitor its cash outflow closely and cautiously in the
coming years and dedicate to maintain a sound financial position and
improve the equity return to the Shareholders.

Pledge of Assets

There was no pledge on the Group’s assets as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2015: Nil).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had commitments which has been
contracted but not yet been provided for in the aggregate amount of
approximately RMB80.0 million (2015: RMB69.3 million), among which
approximately RMB60.7 million (2015: RMB58.9 million) relates to the
loan commitment for the joint venture project with Henkel and the rest
for purchases of property, plant and equipment as well as construction in
progress, while the capital commitment for authorised but not contracted
for in an aggregate amount of approximately RMB246.6 million (2015:
RMB88.9 million) related to the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment as well as construction in progress.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach on its funding and treasury
policies, which aims to maintain an optimal financial position and
minimise the Group’s financial risks. The Group regularly reviews its
funding requirements to ensure adequate financial resources to support
its business operations and future investments as and when needed.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC and its assets, liabilities,
revenues and transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars.

The Group’s foremost exposure to the foreign exchange fluctuations was
caused by the impact of Renminbi exchange rate movements during
the year under review. Most of the Group’s income and expenses are
denominated in RMB except for export sales which were, in majority,
denominated in United States dollars. However, the Group has not
experienced any material difficulties or effects on its operations or liquidity
as a result of the fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year
under review. Besides, the Group will consider adoption of cost-efficient
hedging methods in future foreign currency transactions as and when
appropriate.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 1,420 (2015: 1,180) full-time
employees. The increase in the number of employees was mainly due
to the acquisition of a subsidiary and to meet the expansion in business
activities of the Group during the year under review.

For the year under review, the total staff costs incurred including directors’
remuneration increased to approximately RMB104.6 million (2015:
RMB89.6 million).

The Group has established its human resources policies and scheme with
a view to deploying the incentives and rewards of the remuneration
system which includes a wide range of training and personal development
programs to the employees. The remuneration package offered to the
employees was in line with the duties and the prevailing market terms.
Staff benefits, including medical coverage and provident funds, have also
been provided to the employees of the Group.

The employees would receive discretionary bonuses and monetary
rewards based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals of
the Group. The Group also offered rewards or other incentives to
the employees in order to motivate their personal growth and career
development, such as ongoing opportunities for training to enhance their
technical and products knowledge as well as their knowledge of industry
quality standards. All new employees of the Group are required to attend
an induction course and there are also various types of training courses
available to all the Group’s employees.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. During the year under review,
no share option of the Company has been granted (2015: 17,000,000
share options has been granted).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, in order to ensure the economic stability of the manufacturing
sector and the steady operation of industrial activities, a “supply-side”
reform remained the main theme of the economic transformation in
China on an on-going basis. The industrial economy of China was
characterised by a continuous rebound in prices of industrial products,
a continuous cut of excessive industrial capacity and a de-stocking in
industries like steel and coal. According to data of the National Bureau
of Statistics, the value added by industrial corporations with nationwide
operations increased by 6% in 2016, which is 0.1 percentage point lower
than that of the year earlier, reflecting the struggle between pulling and
pushing factors seen in the reform of economic structure.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, the Group effectively resisted a number
of challenges amidst the economic environment. The Group kept on
strengthening and expanding the basis of advantageous products,
upholding the established strategy of expanding downstream business
along the industry chain, focusing on the enhancement of production
efficiency and reducing costs, which led to significant growth in operating
results. The revenue of the Group increased by 12.6% to approximately
RMB1,265.4 million as compared with last year thanks to the modest
growth in downstream demand for the Group’s major products and the
revenue contribution from Jiangsu Chunxiao during the year under review.
In respect of gross profit and gross profit margin, despite the significant
price rebound in the third quarter of 2016 of certain commodities that
were used as raw materials in the Group’s production activities, the
average price of such materials for the year was still lower than previous
years given their lowered prices recorded in the first half of 2016, which
contributed to the profitability of the Group’s products. Gross profit of
the Group during the year reached approximately RMB396.3 million and
increased by 25.1% as compared with last year. Gross profit margin for
the year was 31.3% and increased by 3.1 percentage points as compared
with 28.2% of last year.

Performance of major product segments of the Group during the year is
discussed as follows:

Cyanide and Its Derivative Products

The Group boasted cyanide and its derivative products as the most
important and advantageous products in its business. During the year
under review, this segment remained to be the core income source of
the Group and recorded revenue of approximately RMB1,194.3 million,
representing an increase of 17.6%, which accounted for 94.4% of the
total revenue of the Group. The growth of this segment mainly benefitted
from the Group’s sales force strengthened during the year. Thanks to the
improved production efficiency and the decreased costs of raw materials,
profit of the segment reached approximately RMB355.6 million, with a
year-on-year increase of 28.4%.

During the year under review, products from cyanoacetic ester series and
malonic ester series were still the biggest contributors to the Group’s
income. They are extensively used in the production of adhesives,
medicines, dyes, flavour, fragrance, pesticides, fertilisers and other fine
chemicals intermediates, and can be applied in a wide range of industries
with very low substitutability. Since these products are mainly based on
sodium cyanide (the production of which is featured with a high entry
barrier), our self-owned industry chain with adequate supply and reliable
technologies has always supported the Group to stay in the leading
position of the cyanoacetic acid ester industry. Thanks to the economy of
scale of the Group’s vertical industry chain and the effective enhancement
of production efficiency, these products manifested outstanding
profitability during the year under review.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Cyanide and Its Derivative Products (Continued)

The core development strategy of the Group is to take full advantages
of the vertical industry chain of existing products and the highly
demanding technological platform in the development of refined
downstream products and even end products. Currently, a number of
derivative adhesive products based on cyanide have been launched to the
market, aiming to meet different end users’ demands with customised
products varying in formulae and applications. In addition, the profit of
downstream cyanide products of Jiangsu Chunxiao has also been included
in this segment, which will continue to create synergy effect and bring
about positive contribution to the Group in the future. With the enriching
and extending product chain, the Group’s competitiveness in the cyanide
market becomes stronger, and is on its path to the leader of the industry.

Alcohol Products

The business of Group’s alcohol products mainly consists of the
production and sales of ethanol and the trading of tert-butanol
products. These products are mainly used as one of the raw materials
for the Group’s vertical integration chain for the sake of satisfying its
own demand, enhancing the cost efficiency of derivative products and
strengthening the Group's competitive advantages. Due to the sluggish
market prices of alcohol products, which are actually lower than the cost
incurred by self-production, the Group has strategically controlled the
production output and sales of these products, and turned to purchase
from other suppliers in the market. During the year under review, the
revenue from external customers of alcohol products only accounted for
1.5% of the total revenue of the Group. The Group will closely monitor
the change of market conditions in the future and adjust the operating
strategy of this segment in a flexible way.

Chloroacetic Acid and Its Derivative Products

Chloroacetic acid products are mainly use as intermediates for the
production of dyes, medicines and pesticides, and are also one of the
key raw materials for the Group’s vertical integration industry chain.
Accordingly, the Group put the steady and adequate internal supply of
such products in the first place. During the year under review, plagued
by the intense market competition of certain chemical raw materials,
the selling prices of chloroacetic acid and relevant products dropped
continuously, thus weakening the profitability of such products. As such,
the Group put this category of products for internal supply mainly, with
the balance for external sales. During the year under review, the revenue
from external customers of chloroacetic acid and its derivative products
was approximately RMB20.5 million, accounting for 1.6% of the Group’s
total revenue. The Group will continue to reduce costs of such products
through continuous advancement of production technologies to ensure
that these products can play a crucial role in supporting the Group'’s
industry chain as a whole.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Joint Venture Company (the “JV Company”)

During the year under review, the Group continued to attach importance
to the development and operating strategy of the JV Company. As the
market competition of similar products intensified, the Group adjusted the
sales strategy of products of the JV Company in the second half of 2016
as appropriate, bringing about an effective increase in sales and output
of products. The quantity of orders received by the JV Company increased
steadily, and positive feedback has been received from customers upon
completion of preliminary performance test on products. During the year
under review, the JV Company did not record positive profit, but the loss
decreased further. In light of the intensive competition in the market, the
management of the JV Company keeping a close eye on its development
conditions, and will timely adjust its operating strategy to accommodate
to changes in the market so as to unleash the competitive advantages
of the JV Company and the economy of scale of its business as soon as
possible.

Prospect

Looking ahead, against the backdrop of the prevailing State policy of
implementing the “supply-side” reform, the operating environment
for industrial enterprises in China is expected to experience numerous
challenges in the course of reformation. With our stable cash inflow
and healthy balance sheet, the Group will make every endeavor to
adhere to the established strategy and to manage risks in a flexible and
controllable manner for the purpose of reinforcing its advantageous
status in the industry of cyanide and its derivative products. Firstly, the
Group considers research and development and follow-up initiatives
for industrial production of new products to be important, and will
support them as a long-term and crucial task. In 2017, the Group will
introduce new products to enrich the established product chain and its
coverage, and will also extend the business scope to the more extensive
downstream application area which has higher market potential. All these
efforts will be able to further strengthen our profitability and anti-risk
capability. Secondly, the Group will continue to focus on consolidating
its advantages in terms of costs, price negotiation and stable clientele
brought about by the vertically integrated industry chain of its own,
to monitor closely the sales volume and market demand of derivative
products and to make self-adjustment with reference to the output of
base upstream raw materials. Given the effort in market surveys and the
close communication with customers, the Group has formulated clear
plans for the increase of production capacity and the transformation for
the year to come.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Prospect (Continued)

The Group has comprehensive understanding on the market by
accumulating years of practical experience in the refined chemical
industry, enabling it to lay a solid foundation for the future development
in terms of product research and development, technological innovation,
transformation of current production capability, strategy making and
coordination of resources in light of sales of end products. Our ability
in this regard provides sustainable driving force for the long-term
development of the Group. The Board will make use of the current
market conditions in a prudent way, spare no effort in optimising its
operations and ensure stable and sustainable development of the Group
so as to create value for Shareholders.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal business
of the Group includes research and development, manufacture and sale
of fine chemical products, which is broadly categorised into four major
product groups, namely the cyanide and its derivative products, the
alcohol products, the chloroacetic acid and its derivative products and
other chemical products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 59 of this annual
report.

During the year under review, the Directors have declared an interim
dividend of HK$0.04 (2015: HK$0.025) per Share totaling approximately
RMB29.6 million (2015: RMB17.4 million), which was paid to the
Shareholders on 20 October 2016.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.08
(2015: HK$0.075) per Share. The final dividend is tentatively to be
distributed by the Company on or about Thursday, 29 June 2017 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 16 June 2017, which is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “2017 AGM").

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
is set out in the sections of Financial Highlights and Five Years Financial
Summary, Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 4 to 5, pages 6 to 9 and pages 12 to 20 respectively of
this annual report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing
quality products and services to its customers and enhancing co-operation
with its business partners.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy. Through the establishment
of 1ISO14000 environmental management system, the Group improves
its environmental management ability so as to achieve environmental
optimisation, minimise pollution, energy saving and reduction of pollutant
emissions.

The Group has established an environmental management team
covering the environmental issues Group-wide. The Group has also
implemented well-defined job specifications and a sound environmental
performance evaluation program so as improving the environmental
performance of the Group from time to time. The Group has complied
with the environmental requirements laid down by the states and local
authorities as well as obtaining ISO14001 environmental management
system certification since 2004. The Group constantly works to
improve environmental management through the plan-do-check-act
quality management principle. The Group uses best efforts to promote
environmental friendly practices to both suppliers and customers. The
Group pursues clean production processes, promotes circular economy,
maintains sound environmental rules and regulations and actively
promotes the 4Rs (Reduce, Recycle, Reuse and Replace) throughout all
the Group’s business activities to realise emission reduction targets.

The Group maintains its highest standards of products, technology and
production processes. All construction projects of the Group are strictly
adopted the “Three Simultaneous System” namely safety, occupational
health and environmental production. Environmental protection is in
place throughout the process from product design to finished product.
The clean production audit is performed regularly. The Group actively
implements the waste treatment and recycling, control pollutant emission,
and provide a safety and health workplace to employees with an aim
to improve their quality of life and working environment within the
production plants.

The Group proactively promotes all employees to participate in
environmental conservation. The Group strives to raise environmental
awareness and competency of all its employees through environmental
protection rules and regulations and environmental work skills. The
Group based on the evaluation of current laws and regulations as well
as the significant environmental factors to formulate an ”Objectives,
Targets, Management Scheme”, and improves the “corrective and
preventive measures” of environmental aspects from time to time. The
Group developed a comprehensive “Significant Environmental Factors
Contingency Plan”. The implementation of Management Scheme,
corrective and preventive measures can effectively control the significant
environmental factors. In accordance with “Significant Environmental
Factors Contingency Plan”, the Group performs drilling regularly to
improve environmental emergency response capacity of all employees,
so as to achieve the objective of reducing pollution, energy conservation,
and environmental protection as well as conscientiously fulfilling
environmental protection, corporate and social responsibility.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

In addition to the matters reported in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis, the following are the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Company as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

Strategic risks

1.

Conditions in the global economy, economic fluctuations in
customers’ industries and volatility and cyclicality of the global fine
chemicals markets may adversely affect the results of the Group.

The Group maintains a balanced portfolio of products serving
a wide spectrum of customers. The Board is closely monitoring
market conditions and corrective actions are taken imminently as
and when necessary.

The ability of the Group to compete is highly dependent on its
ability to develop technological innovations and to introduce new
products. Failure to do so could have an adverse effect on the
Group.

The Group continues to invest in improving existing products,
developing new products and new production technologies through
research and development.

The failure of the Group to procure/produce key raw materials
may lead to production interruptions and volatility in the prices
of such raw materials and energy prices may adversely affect the
profitability of the Group and its working capital position.

Sourcing strategies of the Group are in place to access multiple
sources for key raw materials and the Group works closely with key
suppliers to maintain a reliable and high-quality supply of goods/
services. The Group strives to identify alternative raw materials
where possible. The Group actively monitors its profit margins and
uses best endeavor to recover input cost increases from customers.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)

Operational risks

1.

Compliance with extensive environmental, health and safety laws
and regulations could lead to material expenditure or changes
in the operations of the Group. The manufacture, storage and
transportation of chemicals is inherently dangerous and any
incidents relating to the hazards which the Group faces may
adversely affect its financial condition, results of operations and
reputation.

Detailed safety, health and environmental processes are documented
in operating guidance which is updated and communicated to staff
on a regular basis. Sound maintenance programs are in place in
order to ensure that the facilities meet local statutory requirements.
The Group established a Environment, Health and Safety (“EHS")
department dedicated to EHS issues and ensure the programs for
continuous improvement across all major EHS areas are in place
Group-wide.

The ongoing success of the Group is dependent on attracting
and retaining high quality senior management and staff who can
effectively manage the Group’s operations.

The Group offers competitive compensation packages with
annual bonuses and long-term incentive arrangements (e.g. share
options) for key employees. Appropriate notice periods and non-
compete clauses are used to mitigate short-term risk arising from
the departure of key employees. The Group is also developing a
succession plan for key positions.

Financial risks

1.

The Group's statement of financial position and cash flow or
credit market conditions and credit ratings may restrict the ability
of the Group to obtain credit facilities. In addition, interest rate
fluctuations and increases in bank lending margins may increase the
Group's costs of borrowing.

The management of the Group closely monitors cash flow and
working capital performance on a timely basis to ensure it has
a sound liquidity position and sufficient level of cash and cash
equivalents to finance the Group’s operations. The management
of the Group regularly review the relevant loan covenants for bank
borrowings as well as the interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
Details of the liquidity risk and interest rate risk are set out in note
40 to the financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Financial risks (Continued)

2. Customers’ credit risk will cause a financial loss due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group
only extends credit to customers based on careful evaluation of
the customers’ financial conditions and credit history. In addition,
the management of the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Details of
the customers’ credit risk are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements for the ended 31 December 2016.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2017 AGM will be held on Friday, 2 June 2017. Shareholders should
refer to the details regarding the 2017 AGM in the circular of the
Company of 25 April 2017, the notice of the 2017 AGM and the form of
proxy accompanying thereto.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the 2017 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 29 May 2017 to Friday, 2 June
2017, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the right to attend
and vote at the 2017 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates should be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716 on the 17th Floor of Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26 May 2017.

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders who qualify for the
proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
14 June 2017 to Friday, 16 June 2017, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates should be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716 on the 17th Floor
of Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 13 June 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year under review in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 29 to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited




26

EERE
Directors’ Report

PR
AEBERNBERBYREENRENLEERER
BHENANFRELE -

e

AEBRARRZHREBFHE - DHIENAF R
FO5ANF 66 AZAREGEEREHRNEE

TR ARFTZ A=+ RIEFRE 2 B HRENT
30°

ADRTRA Kb

REFMSEENGNE  EASSERAMMANIET
ZIRBET $’Aaﬂ2ﬁxfﬁ/ﬁ{ﬁﬁ§7ﬂwﬁﬁx$f’ﬁﬂj
DIRSIRTIEE - HRERE D IR E f§: ZIK
BRENEENBEEBRIPER - RZT—X
F+-—A=+—8" ZIS’ATTTﬁ"/JE%Hx%zF%ﬁ
SEHN B AR 246,100,000 (ZZE—FE : A
238,000,000 7T) °

M - BENRE

HEOBEFER > KREBFFEY 4 AR S2,000,000
T (ZZ—HF: ARH99,100,0007T) ¥ -

J??ﬁ)%& R WIRFEEEED - BRAME - BE
REZBHFE  HRBE_T—AFT-A
=t —BULEFEEZWHRERME 13 -

REYE

REBZREYECHNFLEBRER - BEBELZ
WEMENREE N AARK3,100,0007T (=
T—HF: AR®1,200,0007T) @ TR ALLA
Wk - BEASEREMEE 215 - SNE
BT AF+ A=+ HIFEZHBEHRERM
FE15°

BR
ERBEFERN  AEBEER 2 ZEREMIBERAS
AR 160,000 (ZZE—HF &) o

RELCTERBRRR TR FFER

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group on page 65 and 66 of this annual report and note 30 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company can be used for paying distributions or dividends
to Shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum or articles
of association and provided that immediately following the distribution
of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders amounted in total to
approximately RMB246.1 million (2015: RMB238.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year under review, the Group spent approximately RMB82.0
million (2015: RMB99.1 million) on property, plant and equipment to
expand its production capabilities. Details of the movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year end date.
The fair value increase on investment properties arising on revaluation
amounting to approximately RMB3.1 million (2015: RMB1.2 million)
has been credited to the consolidated income statement. Details of
movements in the investment properties of the Group are set out in note
15 to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations totaling approximately RMB0.16 million (2015: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the five largest customers
accounted for 20.6% (2015: 22.4%) of the Group’s total revenue, whilst
the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
6.6% (2015: 6.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the five largest suppliers
accounted for 42.0% (2015: 39.0%) of the Group’s total purchases,
whilst the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 13.3% (2015: 11.7%) of the Group's total purchases.

At no time during the year under review did any Director, any associate of
a Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year under review and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Feng

Mr. Guo Xitian

Mr. Liu Hongliang (resigned with effect from 1 January 2017)
Mr. Wang Zijiang

Mr. Sun Zhenmin (appointed on 1 January 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Baoyu
Mr. Leung Kam Wan
Mr. Liu Chenguang

In accordance with articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Wang Zijiang, Ms. Sun
Zhenmin and Mr. Liu Chenguang shall retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2017 AGM.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed for an initial
term of not more than three years and will be renewable automatically
for successive term of three years until terminated by not less than one
month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of 3 years and thereafter shall continue from year to
year until terminated by giving three months’ notice in writing thereof by
either party to the other.

No person proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
set out in this report and note 38 to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 on “Related Party Transactions”, no contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates in
the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

RGP 2EFE Long Position in the Shares
REARAQT
RZBEAFTANA
Bz BT 8l
BEzHEREHR
FrERHERE,/ Number of share
B options held HEBRTREAY
Number of according to share BABD (%)
AR/ LERE Shares held  option scheme adopted Approximate % in
EENA Name of company interest in by the Company B3 the total issued
Name of Director associated corporation the Shares on 4 October 2006 Capacity share capital
ARz E TEEBEAFRAE (FFE1) 584,000,000 - REEEEE 69.0%
Mr. Liu Hongliang Cheerhill Group Limited (PftsE2) Interest of controlled
(Note 1) (Note 2) corporation
BIRREE - - 720,000 - 0.09%
Mr. Sun Zhenmin (B%E3)
(Note 3)
EEFLL (Mid4) - 140,000 140,000 - 0.03%
Ms. Shi Huifang
(Note 4)
RECIEREARAT —B—AEER
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Long Position in the Shares (Continued)
Notes:

1. The 584,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill Group Limited (“Cheerhill”),
the entire issued share capital of which is ultimately beneficially owned as
t0 38.0% by Mr. Liu Hongliang, 26.0% by Mr. Wang Zijiang, 11.5% by Mr.
Guo Xitian, 11.5% by Ms. Zheng Hong, 6.5% by Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5%
by Mr. Fu Anxu.

2. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in 584,000,000 Shares referred to in Note
1 above by virtue of his 38.0% interests in Cheerhill.

3. Mr. Sun Zhenmin was appointed as an executive Director on 1 January 2017.
600,000 share options and 120,000 share options were granted to Mr. Sun
and his spouse, an employee of Weifang Parasia, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, by the Company on 10 July 2015 respectively.

4. Ms. Shi Huifang is an employee of Weifang Parasia, and is a spouse of Mr.
Wang Zijiang who is an executive Director and therefore an associate of Mr.
Wang Zijiang.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive of
the Company nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial Shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows
that the following Shareholder had notified the Company of its relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Long Position of Substantial Shareholders in the Shares
and/or Underlying Shares

iR Ee,
RS RESAE MO BITRAEE
Number of Shares held/ BHE DL (%)

RREHE interest in the Shares 51 Approximate % in the
Name of Shareholders and aggregated interest Capacity total issued share capital
Gl (FEE) 584,000,000 EREBA 69.0%
Cheerhill (Note) Beneficiary owner

5T Note:

584,000,000 (& i 10 Ty B IE#FE - HE2 IR BITRA
MBS EE FFTHRAE  BAMELE  BiTL+ -
BEREERBLZBERED B HFREZRXHH38.0%
26.0% * 11.5% ~ 11.5% ~ 6.5% 5 6.5% ©

B EXFREEN RZEBE—REFE+-A=1+—
B - AR B EET AT ME R SRR,
R T IRIEE S MAEIEOIBEME AR E) 2
AR - KB ARRIRIEFES RS KM E
336 IFFE Z ERMP R ERIAE -

The 584,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill, the entire issued share capital of
which is ultimately beneficially owned as to 38.0% by Mr. Liu Hongliang, 26.0%
by Mr. Wang Zijiang, 11.5% by Mr. Guo Xitian, 11.5% by Ms. Zheng Hong, 6.5%
by Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5% by Mr. Fu Anxu.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person who had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as at 31 December 2016, which are required to be notified to the
Company under the SFO or which are recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 also constituted
connected transactions. The following transactions between certain
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group
have been entered into and/or are continuing for which relevant
announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

€)

On 30 June 2011, the Company and Henkel entered into the JV
Agreement pursuant to which the Company and Henkel have
agreed to form the JV Company. Upon the incorporation of the
JV Company on 23 February 2012, Henkel, being a substantial
shareholder of the JV Company, has become a connected person
of the Company. Hence, the continuing transactions contemplated
under the framework supply agreement (the”Supply Agreement”)
entered into between the Company (acting on its own behalf and
on behalf of Weifang Parasia Chem Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Parasia”))
and Henkel AG & Co. KGaA (acting on its own behalf and on behalf
of Henkel Ireland Ltd. (“Henkel Ireland”), Henkel Puerto Rico Inc.
and Henkel Ltda.), being associates of Henkel, on 6 December 2013
constitute continuing connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 2 September 2015. During the year
under review, Weifang Parasia has supplied ethylcyanoacetate,
methylcyanoacetate, nbutylcyanoacetate and other chemical
products to Henkel Ireland, Henkel Puerto Rico Inc. and Henkel
Ltda. in aggregated total amount of approximately RMB29.8 million
under the Supply Agreement which was required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

On 14 April 2015, Weifang Common Chem Co. Ltd. (“Weifang
Comchem™), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Afinitica Technologies SL (“Afinitica”) entered into an agreement
pursuant to which Weifang Comchem agreed to supply certain
adhesives products to Afinitica annually (the “Supply”). For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14 April
2015. As Henkel is a substantial shareholder of the JV Company
and Henkel AG & Co. KGaA is a substantial shareholder of Afinitica,
Afinitica becomes a connected person of the Company. The Supply
therefore constitutes continuing connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules. No sales was made to Afinitica
during the year under review.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules”, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The independent auditor of the Company has issued
a report containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group under
this section in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules that the transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board,;

(2)  have been in accordance with the pricing policies as stated in
the relevant agreement;

(3) have been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions
during the year; and

(4) have not exceeded the annual caps disclosed in the
announcements of the Company.

A copy of the report issued by the independent auditor of the
Company has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed (i) the
continuing connected transactions agreements of the above
transactions; (ii) the breakdown of the continuing connected
transactions; (iii) the breakdown of comparable and similar
transactions with independent third parties; and (iv) the
independent auditor’s report in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these transactions were
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) the transactions
were entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The above disclosure of the continuing connected transactions
of the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)  Pursuant to a lease (the “Lease”) entered into between Weifang
Parasia, being a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Weifang Tianhong, Weifang Parasia leased the office
premises owned by Weifang Tianhong for a term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2015 at a gross annual rental payment
of RMB540,000, payable on a pro-rata basis at the end of each
quarter. Weifang Tianhong is a connected person to the Company
as Mr. Liu Hongliang, Mr. Wang Zijiang and Mr. Guo Xitian, all
being executive Directors, have majority voting control of Weifang
Tianhong, the entering into of the Lease constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

The above transaction (c) is de minimis transaction under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, thus it was exempted from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Apart from the above transaction (c), other related-party transactions set
out in note 38 to the financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above and in note 38 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance,
between the Company, controlling Shareholders, or any of its subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries or in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, or which are required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong) subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered
into or existed during the year under review.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During this financial year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes
for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the
Company or its associated companies. The permitted indemnity provisions
are provided for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against such Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is set up by the Board on the basis of
the merit, qualifications and competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to factors including the Group’s operating results, responsibilities
required of the Directors and senior management of the Company and
the comparable market statistics.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the share option schemes adopted by the Company on 4 October
2006 (the”2006 Share Option Scheme"”) and 20 May 2016 (the “2016
Share Option Scheme”) respectively, share options would be granted
to certain Directors, employees and other eligible participants of the
Company entitling them to subscribe for shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company. The 2006 Share Option Scheme was expired and
terminated on 20 May 2016.

Under the 2016 Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of Shares
available for issue upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and other share option
schemes in aggregate shall not exceed 30% of the number of issued
Shares from time to time. The total number of Shares issued and which
may be issued upon exercise of all options (whether exercised, cancelled
or outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to each participant
must not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue unless approved
by the Shareholders in a general meeting. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the 2016 Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board, which must not be more
than ten years from the date of grant. Any Share allotted and issued on
the exercise of options will rank pari passu with other Shares in issue on
the date of allotment.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the eligible participants that become grantees. Each
share option will be vested immediately at the date when the option
is accepted. The share options will lapse immediately after the grantee
ceases to be eligible participant of the Group. The options will lapse due
to the expiry of the option’s exercise period.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant. The subscription price
will be established by the Board at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

Details of the movement in outstanding share options, which have been
granted under the 2006 Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31
December 2016 are as follows:

RE R RITHE

REDERTHE FERBITHE FERRMK Outstanding

AR AER Outstanding at Exercised  Lapsed during at the end

Category of grantee beginning of year during the year the year of the year

Mgt (M) 280,000 (140,000) - 140,000
Ms. Shi Huifang (Note)

BT 16,660,000 (1.680,000) (780,000) 14,200,000

Employee
16,940,000 (1,820,000) (780,000) 14,340,000
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Note: Ms. Shi Huifang is the spouse of Mr. Wang Zijiang who is a Director and
therefore an associate of Mr. Wang Zijiang.

The fair value of the existing share options of the Company calculated are
inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the
limitations of the model used. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in variables
so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an
option. Further details are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, no share option has been granted under
the 2016 Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2016, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme is 84,687,800 which representing 10% and 9.98% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 20 May 2016 (the date of which the
2016 Share Option Scheme has been adopted by the Company) and as at
the date of this annual report, respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining the high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 36 to 51 of this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. After specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended
31 December 2016.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited (“BDO").

A resolution will be proposed at 2017 AGM to re-appoint BDO as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Gao Feng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited




SREABE

Corporate Governance Report

ARBHNBIRBFEROEEER - NBE—
E-RFTA=T—BLEVRFERN - ALQF
ERA BT Em ARSI T hEEARTA
(IsFRIL) 2 RRIRIRTE -

EFETHRIADRNEEEREMR - RBRZ
EERFETETAUZER - TRAANRANEE
FEA—EETTRIZEA TR - AEEHE
EEREAFHRMMLT

EEg
EEAE

EEeRARENERARANET  AREREE
BIEBWEBARAEBHAREARARRE SHAK
Mo AEBENEBRBE S RERERIHEES
HIE - EFERREEBEAARARKE TR
EXRZBeERT BTHELERA -EF9
MBI AKERARETEME BIE MY EIE

=]
EZSAEETEREANRE - TE68% ()
ENMBACEEABRRLEER  (VEBAEEE
RHEFTHER M ERABTEARREETRE | (i)
AREREEREREBABNENRFEEEE
B (v FlE - e MERERNEE REFHIE
PR (MRET AR FE ST ST RINBE R REAR
A RERMENNWEE (Vi) RERARAT]
WEAIKREBIZ - B ENIZENEDH S ERE
MHNE2M - WHEEEAAEREFEZFAMA
RiViRIEFSZESHBENEARE MBE
FeZ8enBRBE R EMEEEEGE R
E2EE WELBEEMEN K (vil) g RER
ARARIEBRAME DT A A 2 BHBEBR -

REBEFER  EFE0 : ()R AR RRRER
R BEARASERENEFNRTER  BXE
AR - ARBERBERR - EREEBRLEER
B TRAIMBRL : (Ves M hEERSRE
BABREIEE : (VR EFeR82EREN
BRI FTAEFEREeRRERREMED
EEABRMAEEZEE  RvyRIARREST
STRIBIB AR AR BIEEERRE N2 HEE

RELCTERBRRR TR FFER

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2016, the Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
requirements set out in the “Corporate Governance Code” (the "CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the Company
periodically to ensure the practices continue to fulfill the CG Code
requirements and considered that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the year under review.
The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The
strategic business direction of the Group and objectives for management
has been formulated by the Board. The Board has delegated the
day-to-day operation responsibility to the management under the
supervision of the general manager of the Company and various Board
committees. The Board reviews the performance of the Group against the
agreed targets and budgets on a regular basis.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which mainly include (i) developing and reviewing policies and
practices on corporate governance; (ii) monitoring and revising policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as
appropriate; (i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (iv)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to employees and Directors; (v) reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of
the Company; (vi) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s process of
information disclosure, including assessing and verifying the accuracy and
materiality of inside information and determine the form and content of
any required disclosure; (vii) reviewing the effectiveness of the committee
structure of the Board and the terms of reference of all Board committees
and their accountability for the corporate governance practices and
make amendment as appropriate; and (viii) reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s communication policy with Shareholders and its stakeholders.

During the year under review, the Board has (i) reviewed the effectiveness
of the communication policy, code of conduct applicable to employees of
the Group and Director, corporate governance policy, inside information
disclosure policy, risk management policy and code for dealing in securities
policy of the Company etc.; (i) reviewed and assessed the training records
of Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewed the effectiveness of
the committees structure of the Board and the terms of reference of all
Board committees and their accountability for the corporate governance
practices; and (iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and the disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.



SREABE

Corporate Governance Report

EEg (#)
AL

SEFEEALREFAN  BROANTEER=F
BYFAITES - SESFHWEEINAFRE0
ENH -EFERERENE SREFHARHEN
SEEBLERBERBMCEETNE KB
B - BIFITES (HP &P —BBLIFNT
EFABAEERERNGHTIEBEVHERER
) BEZ T EMBRAHE L AER - seA R E
HERBEBR T ANEREERLES  BESER
Wet - 2REFRANRFHRALERHBRAE Z
B YHBER AAKEZEBXRBAELRE

IR EFeEINERARRERKRE  HHEY
% X5 BB EMEARMERER - WFHA
BITIELB HE - AARDEERBIUIFNTE
ERARFBI M2 RNFEERE - AEREE
BT E EMRRRRE

ARFEAEEERHAENEERR - MRER
SFRCFEESMSENEERE - RIFHEMIRF

A
et e

EERE EERER

IEEEMEEAER=F NREABERRA
A ARIEB=FHERE K-

REERRBFAG L ER=0—2&EF (M
HBBWI=2F8 RASKRELETIR=0—
ZHERE) RRERE  HEREFAKLE=
FRE-R - REESTRERBEET  IXHE
REZARG LEEETIES - WERIZESER
HEREERXERZEAREIHRRRZES @ #
PRA—-AREZEXERLRESTZALME @ KA
wmET A (BREREERBE) REREZAL -
RE-SRSHEEN  WRESZICETEENST
BB FITE S - BRIABIDRERTARZRR
BREE -

HEFTH=ER - TBBARRERRERER
B MBI EZESHAZEARRELL
EMpREERMREZES -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Composition

The Board comprises seven Directors, including four executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details
of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 11 of this annual report. The
composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise, who offer diversified expertise
and experience, contribute significantly to the important function of
advising management on strategy and policy development. All the
Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence,
contributing to the successful performance of the Group.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the Chairman, members of the Board and the
general manager of the Company. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgment. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of
their independence and is satisfied with their independence in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

The Company maintains appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years and subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third, are required to retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who
have been the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. To further enhance accountability,
any further re-appointment of an independent non-executive Director
who has served the Company for more than nine years will be subject to
separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of time (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any
contract between him and the Company).

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Training

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as
Directors and of the business and activities of the Group. A briefing
is provided and organised to ensure that newly appointed Directors
are familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties
and responsibilities as Director as well as the business and corporate
governance practices of the Group. The company secretary of the
Company (the “"Company Secretary”) will continuously update all
Directors on latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulator requirements so as to familiar compliance of the
same by all Directors.

During the year under review, all Directors received regular updates and
presentations on changes and developments to the Group’s business.
Besides, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of attending training
course relevant to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors
are requested to provide their records of training they received to the
Company Secretary for record.

Company Secretary has attended no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the year
under review.

Chairman and General Manager

The chief executive officer of the Company bears the title of general
manager. In order to reinforce the independence and accountability,
the roles of the Chairman and the general manager of the Company
are segregated and performed by Mr. Gao Feng and Mr. Guo Xitian
respectively. There is a clear distinction responsibility of the Chairman
to mainly provide leadership for the Board and ensure the Board is
functioning properly, with good corporate governance practices and
procedures, whilst the general manager of the Company is responsible for
managing the day-to-day operations, implementing business strategies
and policies approved by the Board, developing and formulating the
organisational structure, internal control systems and internal procedures
and processes for the Board's approval. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and general manager of the Company has been
clearly defined and set out in writing.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every financial year. The
Directors participated in person or through electronic means of
communication. All regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
facilitate the possible fullest attendance. The meeting agenda is set after
consulting with members of the Board. Each Director is invited to present
any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Directors are required to abstain from voting and will not be counted in
the quorum present in the Board meeting if any Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board.

The Directors have been invited to include any matters which they
thought appropriate in the agenda for the Board meetings. Notice of at
least 14 days has been given for each Board meeting. Board papers are
circulated to all Directors not less than 3 days before the Board meetings
to ensure timely access to relevant information. Each Director is able
to access the management of the Group separately and independently
if more information is required. All Directors are permitted to seek
independent professional advice, if required, at the Company’s expenses.

During the year under review, four Board meetings were held. Directors
have discussed the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, including annual budgets, annual and interim
results, approval of major capital transactions and other significant
operational and financial matters etc. Directors are kept informed on
a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s business,
including relevant rules and regulations. The Board’s papers and minutes
of the Company are kept by the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. All draft and final versions of
minutes have been circulated to Directors for review, comment and record
within 30 days after each Board meeting.

Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees with defined terms
of reference, which are of no less exacting terms than those set out in the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s website and also available to Shareholders upon request.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Kam Wan, Mr. Gao Baoyu and Mr. Liu
Chenguang. Mr. Leung is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses recognised professional qualifications in accounting required by
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

(i) ensuring the Group's financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and the auditor’s report present a true and balanced
assessment of the Group’s financial position and complying of the
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

(i) reviewing the Group’s financial controls and internal control;

(i) reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(iv) recommending the appointment and remuneration of the
independent auditor of the Company; and

(v)  other duties are set out in its specific terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year under review
to discuss the following matters:

(i)  reviewing the independence and objectivity of the independent
auditor of the Company and discussing with the independent
auditor of the Company the nature and scope of the audit;

(i)  reviewing the Group’s significant internal controls and financial
matters as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference with
management of the Company;

(iii)  reviewing the audit findings provided by the independent auditor of
the Company, and identifying and making recommendations to the
Board on any matters where action or improvement is needed;

(iv) reviewing the Group’s accounting principles and practices, listing
rules and statutory compliance, internal controls and financial
reporting matters;

(v)  reviewing the annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 and interim financial statements for the six months

ended 30 June 2016;

(vi)  reviewing the continuing connected transactions of the Group; and
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(vii) reviewing the terms of remuneration of the independent auditor of
the Company and recommending the Board on the re-appointment
of the independent auditor of the Company.

The members of the Audit Committee had also participated to (i) review
the self-assessment report on compliance of CG code; (ii) evaluate
the sufficiency of resources, the qualification and the experience of
the employees who were responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting of the Group, and the sufficiency of training courses received
by them; (iii) review and approve the annual budget of the Group; (iv)
review the internal audit report of the Group; and (v) review the risk
management policy of the Group etc. during the year under review.

On 27 March 2017, the Audit Committee also held a meeting to review
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Audit Committee was satisfied that the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Group are in accordance with the current best practices
in Hong Kong. The Audit Committee found no unusual items that
were omitted from the financial statements and was satisfied with the
disclosures of data and explanations shown in the financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Chenguang, an
independent non-executive Director, with Mr. Leung Kam Wan, an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Gao Baoyu, an independent
non-executive Director, Mr. Liu Hongliang, the executive Director (resigned
with effect from 1 July 2016) and Mr. Gao Feng, the executive Director
(appointed on 1 July 2016), as the three other members. The majority
members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy of
individual Directors and members of senior management of the Group,
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives as well as
considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;
(ii) reviewing the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure and
other compensation-related issues and make recommendation to the
Board; and (iii) other duties as set out in its specific terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman on its
proposals and recommendations, and also has access to professional
advice if deemed necessary by the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is also provided with other resources enabling
it to discharge its duties.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has held
two meetings to (i) review of the remuneration packages for all the
Directors and senior management of the Group by reference to their
responsibilities and duties, the Group’s operating results and achieved
corporate objectives, after taking into account also the comparable
market conditions and made recommendation to the Board for approval;
(ii) review the remuneration policy for Director and senior management of
the Group; and (iii) review the service contract terms of the Directors. No
Director shall participate in any discussion and resolution about his own
remuneration.

Remuneration policy

The primary goal of the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Group is to enable the Group to retain and motivate
executive Directors and senior management of the Group by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against the corporate
objectives of the Company. The principal elements of the remuneration
package for Directors and senior management of the Group include basic
salary, other benefit, discretionary bonus and share option. In determining
guidelines for each compensation element, the Company will make
reference to market remuneration surveys on companies operating in
similar business and comparable scale.

The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors mainly
comprising directors’ fees which is subject to annual assessment with
reference to the market standard. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their
duties including attendance at the Company meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongliang (resigned
on 1 July 2016 and replaced by Mr. Gao Feng with effective from 1 July
2016), an executive Director, with Mr. Liu Chenguang and Mr. Leung Kam
Wan, as the two other members, both are independent non-executive
Directors. The majority members of the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (i) formulating
nomination policy, (ii) making recommendations to the Board on
nomination and appointment of Directors and the Board succession, and
(iii) reviewing the Board diversity policy and makes recommendations to
the Board if necessary. The Board diversity policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board which includes gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional and industry experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and the legitimate interests of the
principal Shareholders. The Nomination Committee will also consider the
merits and contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director with due regard for the
diversity of the Board so as to complement the existing Board. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) review the structure, size
and diversity of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
(ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) other duties are set out in
its specific terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

The criteria for the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship including but not limited to the candidate’s
skill, knowledge and experience in relevant areas, the number of
directorships of listed companies held by the candidate, the time
commitment required, and whether the candidate can demonstrate a
level of competence and integrity required for the position of the Director
etc.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to (i) assess the current structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
review the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
(iii) review and recommend the re-appointment of the retiring Directors
for Shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting; (iv) review the
Board diversity policy; (v) review the Directors succession plan; and (vi)
recommend the appointment of the new Director for the Board approval.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee

The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee is responsible for
enhancing the safety and effectiveness of production operations that
would eliminate the main operating risk of the Group. The Safety and
Environmental Protection Committee is chaired by Mr. Guo Xitian,
an executive Director and other members are Mr. Gao Baoyu, an
independent non-executive Director and Mr. Sun Zhenmin, an executive
Director. The primary duties of the Committee include:

(i)  formulating the Group’s overall safety and environmental protection
policy and regulations;

(i) establishing and maintaining a safety and environmental production
operating system of the Group;

(iii)  inspecting and monitoring the productions and operations of the
Group to ensure the Group's safety and environmental protection
policy and regulations are implemented effectively;

(iv)  ensuring the production operations of the Group are complied with
all relevant rules and regulations promulgated by relevant regulators
and authorities from time to time; and

(v)  responding and handling all complaints regarding the safety and
environmental issues and make recommendation to the Board for
improvement.

The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee has held one
meeting during the year under review to consider the following issues:

(i)  reviewing the work tasks completed by EHS department of the
Group during the year under review; and

(i) planning and assessing upcoming environmental improvement
projects in according to the Group’s business development needs
and advise the Board thereof.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general
meeting is set out below:

HESRDE
Attendance of meetings
Z2RK
RRAEF RREEE
VN Safety and
Annual EVEEE FMzEEE REZZ82 Environmental
general EEg Audit Remuneration Nomination Protection
meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
HITEF Executive Directors
Bt Mr. Liu Hongliang*® 0/ 4/4 173 12 112 -
IFIEE Mr. Wang Zijiang 11 4/4 - - - -
BRERLET Mr. Guo Xitian’ ”n 4/4 - - - 17N
mig s Mr. Gao Feng®® 1/1 4/4 23 22 112 -
HRR F A Mr. Sun Zhenminé - - - - - 11
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
PREFAE 6 Mr. Leung Kam Wan'#6 1/1 4/4 33 22 22 -
mEREEL S Mr. Gao Baoyu4 ” 4/4 33 22 - AT
RSk E 36 Mr. Liu Chenguang?*6 1/1 4/4 33 22 22 -
PR - Notes:
1. BEZZER®XF 1. Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. BREZEgKE 2. Member of the Audit Committee
3. FMEERXRF 3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
4. HFMEEEKE 4. Member of the Remuneration Committee
5. RELZE®XR 5. Chairman of the Nomination Committee
6. REZEEKE 6.  Member of the Nomination Committee
7. LZERRREZEE®ER 7. Chairman of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee
8. LERRRZEEGKE 8. Member of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to Shareholders and the public pursuant to all types of statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
the applicable accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the Group are
published in a timely manner. The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 52 to 58 of this report.

In addition, the Board has reviewed and considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staffs of the accounting and
financial reporting function of the Group and also considered the training
programs and budget during the year under review.

Monthly updates have been provided to the Board timely during the year
under review. Management is also required to provide detailed reports
and explanation to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
before approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for the Group’s system of internal
control and maintaining a sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard the Group’s assets and the Shareholders’
investment.

The Board is also responsible for the overall risk management functions
of the Group. Risk management procedures has been set up and
implemented for the overall operations of the Group, which is in place
to provide a consistent approach on the risk management processes in
identification, assessment, treatment and reporting of all risks identified
that would affect key business activities.

The internal control and risk management systems of the Group comprise
a comprehensive organisational structure and delegation of authorities,
with responsibilities of each business and operational units clearly
defined and authorities assigned to individuals based on experience and
business needs. Systems have been designed to (i) help the achievement
of business objectives and safeguard assets against unauthorised use
and disposition; (ii) ensure compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations, and ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information used within the business or for
publication; and (iii) identify, manage and mitigate key risks to the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (CONTINUED)

The internal control and risk management systems of the Group are
established to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks
of failure in achieving the Group’s business objectives.

An internal audit department of the Group is established to ensure that
all internal control procedures, compliance controls procedures and
risk management measures and procedures are properly implemented.
The internal audit department of the Group is also formulating more
control measures to put in place aim to establish more comprehensive
management systems so as to support the business continuous
development of the Group. The internal audit department of the
Group will report to the Board directly and periodically after performing
independent reviews and examinations on the risks associated with and
controls over various operations and activities within the Group and
evaluates their adequacy, effectiveness and compliance.

During the year under review, the internal audit department of the Group
has performed internal control review and examination on the sales
operation of the Group. The findings have been reported directly to the
Board. The Board concluded that no significant weakness was noted from
the internal audit report but the management will further improve the
operations and procedures by implementing several recommendations
suggested by the internal audit department of the Group. The
improvement progress on these audit recommendations is followed up on
a regular basis by internal audit department until the Board’s satisfaction.

The Directors will take a constant review of internal control and risk
management systems of the Group at least annually to ensure the systems
remains sound and effectiveness on an on-going basis. During the year
under review, the Directors has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group and considered that
are effective and adequate. Besides, the executive Directors is always
participate in the monthly management meetings to review the Group’s
financial and operational procedures, fraud investigations (if any),
productivity efficiency and effectiveness etc., and/or meetings held as and
when required to address or rectify irregularities immediately.

In addition, pursuant to the employee handbook of the Group, employees
can report any ethical misconduct, impropriety or fraud cases within
the Group to the independent non-executive Directors or Chairman
anonymously in writing without fear of victimisation, subsequent
discrimination, disadvantage or dismissal.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (CONTINUED)

The Board is responsible for the handling of the dissemination of inside
information and other financial disclosure requirements procedures. The
Board is fully aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the
overriding principle that inside information of the Company should be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable. The Company has developed
an inside information disclosure policy by reference to the Guide on
Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission. Any unauthorised use of confidential or inside information
is strictly prohibited under the inside information disclosure policy of the
Company. The inside information disclosure policy has also clearly defined
the procedures for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs and ensure the strict confidence of inside information prior to
its disclosure. Employees who are privy or have access to unpublished
inside information of the Group has also been notified on the adoption
of the Model Code by the Company and on observing the restrictions
pursuant to Parts Xlll and XIV of the SFO. The Board will review the inside
information disclosure policy regularly to make recommendations or
amendments thereto, if necessary.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing
securities transactions of the Directors. Each of the Directors has
confirmed, upon specific enquiry, his compliance with the Model Code
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The Company has
also adopted written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for the relevant employees. The senior management, who,
because of their office in the Group, is likely to be in possession of inside
information, has been requested to comply with the provisions of the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. No incidence of non-compliance of the
employees’ written guidelines by the relevant employees was noted by
the Company during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting
(the”EGM™)

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting
(the”EGM") (Continued)

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed
by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

If the request which has been verified is not in order, the Shareholders
making the request will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an
EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
must be in writing with contact information of the Shareholders and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

Right to Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move resolutions at
the general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as
a Director under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as amended from
time to time) or the Articles of Association. However, Shareholders may
suggest proposals by sending written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary following the procedures set out in the paragraph
headed “Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting” above to
convene an EGM for any business specified in such written requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
Right to Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice signed by a member of the Company
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his willingness to be elected including that person’s
biographical details as required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, shall
have been lodged at the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong provided that the minimum length of
the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers its annual general meeting as an important
channel for face-to-face dialogue with Shareholders. The Chairman and
either the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee or their representatives would attend the annual general
meeting of the Company answering and explaining to Shareholders
issues relating to the Group’s business strategies and financial results and
proposed resolutions at the general meeting. At the commencement
of the meeting, the chairman of the meeting will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any questions from
Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its Shareholder through
announcements and annual and interim reports. All such reports and
announcements can also be accessed via the Company’s website and
the website of the Stock Exchange. The Chairman and the investor
relationship manager are the key spokespersons of the Company in
all external media communications and respond to inquiries from
Shareholders and investment community.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The nature and ratio of annual fees to the independent auditor of the
Company for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to
scrutiny by the Audit Committee. The provision of non-audit services by
the independent auditor of the Company requires prior approval of Audit
Committee so as to ensure that the independence and objectivity of the
independent auditor of the Company will not be impaired. Details of the
fees paid or payable to the independent auditor of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Audit services HK$650,000
Non-audit services
Review of interim financial statements HK$50,000

On behalf of the Board
Gao Feng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tiande
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 144, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Valuation of Derivative Financial Instruments

Refer to note 32 and the Group’s critical accounting estimates and
judgements in relation to fair value of derivative financial instruments set
out in note 4(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had derivative financial assets of
RMB2,993,000 and a fair value gain on these financial instruments
of RMB10,318,000 was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2016 relating to the call and put options which entitle the Company to
require the joint venture partner to sell its 45% equity interest in the joint
venture, and entitle the joint venture partner to require the Company to
purchase its 45% equity interest in the joint venture respectively. The call
option asset and put option liability are re-measured at each reporting
date, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Management has engaged an independent valuation firm to estimate the
fair value of derivative financial instruments by using the Binominal Lattice
Model, which requires a high level of judgement on the assumptions
applied, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

We have identified valuation of derivative financial instruments as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the valuation involves a significant management
judgement and estimation on cash flow forecast, volatility and weighted
average cost of capital.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures on the valuation of derivative financial instruments
included:

- Conducting in-depth discussions with management and the
valuer about the discounted cash flow and assessing the valuation
methodology;

- Engaging our inhouse valuation specialist to assist us in evaluating
and assessing the appropriateness of the key assumptions used in
the valuation;

- Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

- Assessing management’s historical forecast accuracy by comparing
previous projections to actual results achieved;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of data
provided by management; and

- Considering the appropriateness of the valuation recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment Assessment on Goodwill

Refer to note 16, note 37 and the Group’s critical accounting estimates
and judgements in relation to impairment of goodwill set out in note
4(viii) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had goodwill of RMB17,668,000
as a result of the acquisition of Jiangsu Chunxiao Pharmaceutical and
Chemical Company Limited made during the year.

Management has performed impairment test on goodwill in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of goodwill. This conclusion was based on value-
in-use calculations that require the estimation of recoverable amount, as
detailed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

We have identified impairment assessment on goodwill as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial statements
and because estimation of the value-in-use calculations involve significant
management judgement with respect to its underlying 5-year period cash
flow forecasts, discount rate and future growth rate.
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
(Continued)

Our procedures in relation to the management’s impairment assessment
included:

- Conducting in-depth discussions with management about the cash
flow forecasts used in the value-in-use calculations and assessing
the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and critical
judgement areas which affect the value-in-use calculations;

- Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry, in particular those relating
to the 5-year period cash flow forecasts underlying the value-in-use
calculations;

- Benchmarking the growth rate and discount rate used in the
value-in-use calculations against independent industry data and
comparable companies;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the data
provided by the management, such as growth rate and discount
rate used;

- Evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations; and

- Performing sensitivity analyses including assessing the effect of a
change in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating unit.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P05018

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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—E-RE —T—AfF
2016 2015
bz ARETT ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
E Revenue 6 1,265,389 1,123,408
THER A Cost of sales (869,088) (806,519)
EF Gross profit 396,301 316,889
HWA Other income 6 16,867 13,897
HEYEEGIEE Revaluation gain on investment properties 15 3,090 1,220
HERX Selling expenses (43,694) (35,408)
THREMEERS Administrative and other operating expenses (50,258) (44,698)
B 7S AR AN Finance costs 7 (1,212) (1,063)
TESmMITAENARE Fair value gain on derivative
W zs financial instruments 32 10,318 3,161
Elh—REG & R)EE Share of loss of a joint venture 17 (6,734) (6,961)
BRATS B AR R Profit before income tax 8 324,678 247,037
FriSHiF Income tax expense 9 (105,219) (74,666)
REERF Profit for the year 219,459 172,371 ¢
(L AEERF, (B18) : Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:
RARHEEA Owners of the Company 219,603 172,371
FEAE b hE Non-controlling interests (144) =
219,459 172,371
MAtE AN RES AFEM  Earnings per share for profit attributable to
REL MM owners of the Company for the year
pa =30l
=N — Basic 12 AR#¥0.259 T AR®0.2047T
RMBO0.259 RMB0.204
-8 — Diluted 12 AR¥0.259 T AR¥0.2047C
RMBO0.259 RMBO0.204
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HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-RF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
A R A Profit for the year 219,459 172,371
Hih 2 E W= Other comprehensive income
HEWRENSEE Items that may be reclassified subsequently
Wik zER - to the income statement:
WMEIGINEIFRIIEERA 2 Exchange losses on translation of financial statements
b H E5i8 of foreign operations (123) (1,885)
E—RKEERAIHEHM Share of other comprehensive income of
2HE R a joint venture (1,866) (1,625)
AREEHA 2 E KRS Other comprehensive income for the year (1,989) (3,510)
AEELHIRGZAE Total comprehensive income for the year 217,470 168,861
EiEREE2 RS Total comprehensive income for the
B year attributable to:
IN/NCIEZ =N Owners of the Company 217,615 168,861
FEVE Non-controlling interests (145) =
217,470 168,861

RECTERBRAR TR FFER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

M-ZZE—R"FE+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2016

—E-RE —T—AfF
2016 2015
bz AR%T R ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BEERGE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FEREEE Non-current assets
W% - B NEE Property, plant and equipment 13 652,475 601,933
TES AR EFRIE Prepaid land lease payments 14 59,858 50,122
AW Investment properties 15 18,820 15,730
S Goodwill 16 17,668 =
BEME  BER Deposits paid for acquisition of
REZEMRTE property, plant and equipment 11,183 3,876
R—RKEERE 2= Interests in a joint venture 17 22,607 31,576
MTESRMEE Derivative financial assets 32 2,993 =
FEW B IS TH & R IE Finance lease receivable 18 12,617 13,413
FETTBE 2= Deferred tax assets 19 2,180 2,422
800,401 719,072
REBEE Current assets
& Inventories 20 130,707 96,301
) LGN E S Trade and bills receivable 21 432,012 394,631
TERIE R EMEWSIAE  Prepayments and other receivables 22 19,440 13,758
B —=R& & R aElFRIE Amount due from a joint venture 17 52,883 40,546
FEW B TS A & SR Finance lease receivable 18 797 797
RIT MRS A Bank and cash balances 23 184,320 117,661
820,159 663,694
REAE Current liabilities
B R ER Trade payables 24 39,053 23,176
FERARERA R Accruals and other payables
H fth e (< FRIR 25 140,107 102,556
RITIERK Bank borrowings 26 56,816 32,072
FET— K EaH A BIFI8 Amount due to a related company 27 1,191 =
FEfRT—Z IEIERSARERZIE  Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder 27 3,376 =
MEBHIREE Current tax liabilities 30,570 19,780
271,113 177,584
REBEERE Net current assets 549,046 486,110
BWEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,349,447 1,205,182
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R-ZZE—RE+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2016

—E-REF —E—FF
2016 2015
BisE AR®F T AREETFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

FRBARE Non-current liabilities
FEIEUA Deferred income 28 9,918 12,361
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 21,902 7,496
PTESRMEE Derivative financial liabilities 32 - 7,325
31,820 27,182
EEFE Net assets 1,317,627 1,178,000

s EQUITY
%N Share capital 29 7,802 7,786
EE Reserves 30 1,309,968 1,170,214
AATEE AEGER Equity attributable to the Company’s owners 1,317,770 1,178,000
e bR Non-controlling interests (143) =
e Total equity 1,317,627 1,178,000
=1 SBHEH
GAO FENG GUO XITIAN
Ea EZE
Director Director

RECTERBRAR TR FFER
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HEZZT—XF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
—E-RE —T—AfF
2016 2015
bz ARETT ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

BEEEELEZEELHRE  Cash flows from operating activities
BR P15 55 Al ) Profit before income tax 324,678 247,037
Bt A S IEEFE Adjustments for:
IRITH BUA Bank interest income 6 (1,780) (1,689)
—REERAFEWA Interest income from a joint venture 6 (1,120) (1,049)
B HEEF S A Interest income from finance lease 6 (966) (1,054)
B Interest expenses 7 1,212 1,063
Bin Amortisation 8 1,386 1,293
e Depreciation 8 80,419 69,359
PEFEU A [B] 5 Release of deferred income 6 (3,640) (3,449)
W= IR FE Write-down of inventories to

FESRE net realisable value 8 1,743 =
W= 3R 5B Reversal of write-down of inventories

FEZOESE to net realisable value 8 - (43)
LEYHESHIEE Revaluation gain on investment properties 15 (3,090) (1,220)
x4 E ARR (D 25 2 Equity-settled share-based payment 8

FIBFS expenses 3,793 2,736
2 ZRWERRERE Impairment loss on trade receivables 8 4 3,232
5 EWRREREIEEE  Impairment loss trade receivables written back 8 (247) =
B —REE R alEE Share of loss of a joint venture 6,734 6,961
M—RAELAFSEEEMA Change in unrealised profit on goods sold 63

REIR G R to a joint venture 369 (58)
PTHESRTI AN ARE Fair value gain on derivative financial

Weas instruments 32 (10,318) (3,161)
HEME - BEK&E (Gain)/Loss on disposals of property, plant

FrisF () /BiE and equipment, net 6.8 (110) 7
LEESEHE Operating profit before working

K capital changes 399,067 319,965
FE®EMm Increase in inventories (10,485) (7,360)
Z 5 R - FEWEIER,.  Increase in trade, bills and other

HAb Y RIE R receivables and prepayments

TR FRIAE N (31,229) (48,639)
B —R G &R FIFIE (Increase)/Decrease in amount due from

(3h0) a joint venture (7,829) 1,606
JEfT—ZR B8EE A RIFKIBIE AN Increase in amount due to a related party 1,191 =
BSENE - BARA (Decrease)/Increase in trade and accruals

B 0 K HL A FE A5 508 and other payables

CR) /#En (24,528) 4,465
REEBMEIRE Cash generated from operations 326,187 270,037
EATATIEH Income taxes paid (85,092) (70,645)
AEEBELZHEFFE  Net cash generated from operating activities 241,095 199,392
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HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-RF —E—ARF
2016 2015
BitEE AR¥T ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REXKELEZIRSHRE  Cash flows from investing activities
EEMZE - BB &&HE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (82,024) (99,091)
HEWE - BE&EHE 2 Proceeds on disposals of property,
FT{S R plant and equipment 114 1
EEYE  MENMEEZ  Government grants for construction of
R AT 4 b property, plant and equipment 1,330 4,000
U EE — R B A B Acquisition of a subsidiary, 37 (39,097) -
Xtz R FEE net cash paid
FREVERA =& A LA EAY Decrease in short-term deposits with an
5B RO A original maturity of more than 3 months - 15,500
—REERREERR Repayment of loan from a joint venture 373 =
BUHE Interest received 1,780 1,689
REZEATH B2/ F88  Net cash used in investing activities (117,524) (77,901)
MEXBKEEZHSRE Cash flows from financing activities
BERRE Dividend paid 11 (83,904) (48,014)
ERFE Interest paid (1,197) (1,073)
FRTT{E AR Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
BATERAR 2 P13 5KIE through exercise of share options 2,266 =
BERITER Repayments of bank borrowings (32,959) (49,522)
LRI TIER New bank borrowings 56,815 49,666
—EZIFERBRRLE Capital contribution by
a non-controlling shareholder 2 -
—EIFEARAR R 2K Advance from a non-controlling
shareholder 3,354 -
B EEBATH HEE/FE  Net cash used in financing activities (55,623) (48,943)
ReRREFEEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Y& N A 67,948 72,548
FzReMREeEE Cash and cash equivalents
HH at beginning of year 117,661 47,442
HNGEE DB B ) 2 B Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,289) (2,329)
FRESMIRESFMEIEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 184,320 117,661
HERBELEEEHLE  Analysis of balances of cash and
D cash equivalents
RITRIBE 4R Bank and cash balances 23 184,320 117,661

RECTERBRAR TR FFER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEZZT—XF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

ARAHEARESR
Attributable to owners of the Company
ik

Bs S Eifie  BRE

MEE  EfEE  DEE  Foreign it FRGRE
BEk  RORE  BRIEE  Suplus  Property  Public  curency  Share  RERA Non-  #E&
Share Share  Special  reserve revaluation  welfare translation option  Retained &3t controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund  reserve fund  reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETr ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARETR ARETx
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(M&E30a)  (HiEF30b)  (FHEF30c) (WzE30d)  (Mi&E30e)  (Fi&E30f)
(note 30a) (note 30b) (note 30c) (note 30d) (note 30e) (note 30f)

RZE-AE  Balanceat

—-B-R&s  1January 2016 778 106,333 31,182 68,338 1,653 633 (5.814) 2736 965,153 1,178,000 - 1,178,000
TEEENRA Equity-settled share-

SfZFB  based payment

R experses - - - - - - S 1% - m -3
TREEIRETE Shares issued under

R0 share option scheme

(WE31)  (note31) 16 3,087 - - - - - (837) - 226 - 26

%3k Capital contribution

BRI by a non-controlling

shareholder - - - - - - - - - - 2 2

BRZZ-R% 2015 final dividend

KRS paid (note 11)

(Kt 11) - - - - - - - - (54293)  (54.293) - (54293)
BAZE—"E 2016 interim dividend

MRS paid (note 11)

(Kt 11) - - - - - - - - (29611)  (2961) - (961)

EEAARS  Transactions with

owners 16 3,087 - - - - - 2956 (83904)  (77,845) 1 (178m)
KEERF  Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 219603 219,603 (144) 219459
Efi2EUE  Other comprehensive

income

BERNER  Exchange losses on
B#E%Kz  translation of
38 72 financial statements

of foreign operations - - - - - - (1,988) - - (1,988) (1) (1,989)
REE Total comprehensive
2EREEE  income for the year - - - - - - (1989) - 219603 217615 (145) 217470
RZE-%~E  Balanceat
TZA=1-B 31December 2016
Fi3 7802 109,420 31,182 68,338 1,653 633 (7.802) 5692 1100852 1,317,770 (143) 1,317,627
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

KRARA NGRS

Attributable to owners of the Company

HVERER
P43 % e ke
NEE EfEE AHe Foeign 1
BE  BHEE  BHEE  Supls  Popety  Public  currengy Share  REEF
Share Share Special reserve revaluation  welfare  translation option  Retained At
capital  premium  reserve fund reserve fund  reserve  reserve profits Total
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(FitzE30a) (FzE30b)  (FitzE30¢) (PizE30d) (Mzt30e) (i 30f)
(note 308)  (note 30b)  (note 30c) (note 30d) (note 30e)  (note 30f)
R=B-1E Balance at 1 January 2015
-A-R&R 7,786 106,333 31,182 67,040 1,653 633 (2,304) - 842,094 1054417
RELELRG  Equity-settled share-based
T ZFIERS payment expenses = - = - = - - 273% - T3
BRZE-TE 2014 final dividend paid
RERE (note 11)
(HsE11) - - - - - - - - (30610)  (30,610)
BRZZ—RF 2015 interim dividend paid
RS (note 11)
(HsE11) - - - - - - - - (17404)  (17,404)
66 TREARE Transactions with owners - - - - - - - 276 (48014)  (45278)
REERR Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 31 173N
Eft 2 Other comprehensive income
BEBINEE Exchange loss on translation of finandial
Btk statements of foreign operations
EXBE - - - - - - (3510 - - (3510
rEE Total comprehensive income
2ERHEE for the year - - - - - - (3510) - 172371 168,861
AEEEERE  Appropriations to statutory reserve = = = 1,298 = = = - (1,29) =
R=2-1% Balance at 31 December 2015
t=A=t-H
3] 7,786 106,333 31,182 68,338 1,653 633 (5,814) 2,736 965,153 1,178,000
FECIERARAT —B—AEER
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1.

—fRER
KECTIERERAR ([RAAA]) B—X
EHRSHEREBERASERSARDAZMAKIZ
ERBER AR SRR Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° ZX 2
AROREBHERZMERAE ([HR
Frl) e

WKEE37 AP - RZT—RFNA - £&E
BRI HEREDC TR ER AT
(DI#ARBE]) 2100%XHE - ZAFRH
FARLME (THE]) KL - EZREEH
T AENMHERAMCTER ZWBER
ZHBENHERARAD IR T —RFN
A=TBR-ZF—R"FT-AT+HEBTIEN
NEA - R LMK REBENFER
EBRWBERES) - ARAITEXRBR/KRE
TR EMB ARz X BRBEHNHIE34

ARRIES ([EF]) BB AEEZ&ER
ERARAERBREAES ([ RBELE
&) AMRZzEEEERRAF

AR EEREE ([EE]) - @R
AEENEBERBUNPE - BHERRAA
R ([ARKE]) 27 - BREBHAESN -
Pz BRE MR AAERE I Z THh °

F 59 % 144 B ATk « W TRk TR BB A Bt
HMmERER ([ EBPHIREER] - 5B
AEREESGHMAE ([BEFSFMA
) FTRGAER 2 AR BB ISRE%E
B ([BEMBHREED]) HFgHER
([EBe:tER]) ki) UWEREBAR
1012 B TRARE MAREL o BI A5 ¥R N ek A B
REfESF EMRAREZ BRREEEE -

BE_Z-—RF+t__A=T—HILFEZY
BHREREVN T LtF=-A-_+LHEESF
SHOETIE -

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

As described in note 37, in September 2016, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% equity interests in Jiangsu Chunxiao
Pharmaceutical and Chemical Company Limited ;T % & Bz 88 % {b
T & £ A& BR 2 7] (“iangsu Chunxiao”), a company established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), which is engaged
in research and development, manufacture and sales of fine
chemical products. Details of the acquisition have been set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 30 August 2016 and
15 December 2016. Other than this acquisition, there were no
significant changes in the Group’s operations during the year.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
34,

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
ultimate holding company of the Group to be Cheerhill Group
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI").

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$"). The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") because the main operations of the Group are located in
the PRC and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 59 to 144 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
were approved for issue by board of the Directors on 27 March
2017.
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RECTERBRAR TR FFER

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(@) New or amended standards adopted by the

Group

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2016. Other than as noted below, the
adoption of these new or amended HKFRSs has no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use
judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when considering the
layout and content of their financial statements.

Included in the clarifications is that an entity’s share of other
comprehensive income from equity accounted interests in
associates and joint ventures is split between those items that
will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented
in aggregate as a single line item within those two groups.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant

and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation based on revenue
is not appropriate for intangible assets. This presumption
can be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed

as a measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated. The amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not previously used
revenue-based depreciation methods.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity method
in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in its separate financial statements. The
amendments are applied retrospectively in accordance with
HKAS 8.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Company has not elected to apply
the equity method in its separate financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

New or amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
- Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements for an intermediate
parent entity is available to a subsidiary of an investment
entity (including investment entities that account for their
subsidiaries at fair value rather than consolidating them).
An investment entity parent will consolidate a subsidiary
only when the subsidiary is not itself an investment entity
and the subsidiary’s main purpose is to provide services that
relate to the investment entity’s investment activities. A non-
investment entity applying the equity method to an associate
or joint venture that is an investment entity may retain the fair
value measurements that associate or joint venture used for
its subsidiaries. An investment entity that prepares financial
statements in which all its subsidiaries are measured at fair
value through profit or loss should provide the disclosures
related to investment entities as required by HKFRS 12. The
amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Company is neither an
intermediate parent entity nor an investment entity.

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

At the date of this report, certain new or amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have not
been adopted early by the Group.

The Directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
The Directors are currently assessing the impact of the new or
amended HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Directors
have preliminarily concluded that the initial application of
these HKFRSs will not result in material financial impact on
these financial statements. Information on new or amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have an impact on the Group’s
accounting policies is provided below.

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments introduce
an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments relate to the
recognition of deferred tax assets and clarify some of the
necessary considerations, including how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at
fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments provide
requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting and
non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled
share-based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations;
and a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows (the business model test)
and that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of
the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The new standard establishes a
single revenue recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments to HKFRS
15 included clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. HKFRS 16, which upon the
effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new
or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost
convention except for investment properties and derivative
financial instruments which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation and business combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded from
consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation and business

(@)

combination (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to
exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the Group and at
least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:

(i) Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the
net assets of the joint arrangement; or

(i) Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights
to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

(i)  the structure of the joint arrangement;

(i)  the legal form of joint arrangements structured through
a separate vehicle;

(i) the contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

(iv) other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

Joint ventures are accounted for using equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the joint ventures’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the joint ventures.
The investor's share in the joint ventures’ profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the joint ventures. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint ventures are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation

()

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined and are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into RMB at the closing rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
foreign currency translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress (“CIP")) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to
write off the cost less their estimated residual values, if any,
over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

4.5%-5% or the lease term,
whichever is shorter

20% or the lease term,
whichever is shorter
6%-10%
18%-19%
18%-30%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

CIP represents leasehold buildings and plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct cost of construction
as well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction is transferred to the appropriate
class of property, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of CIP until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Prepaid land lease payments

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under
an operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. The determination
if an arrangement is or contains a lease and the lease is
an operating lease is detailed in note 3(0). Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line method over the term of the
lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived by
the Group from use of the land.

The prepaid land lease payments comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals and the other portion that is held for
administrative purpose. As the portion held to earn rentals
cannot be sold separately and is insignificant, it is classified as
prepaid land lease payments rather than investment property.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, it is stated at fair value,
unless it is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined by an
independent valuation firm, with sufficient experience with
respect to both the location and the nature of the investment
property. The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the reporting
date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value
or the sale of an investment property are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Research and development activities

Cost associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
development activities are capitalised provided they meet the
following recognition requirement:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the product and use or
sell it;

(ili)  the Group’'s ability to use or sell the product is
demonstrated;

(iv)  the product will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the product can be
reliably measured.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

()

Research and development activities
(Continued)

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of development of internally generated
software, products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are capitalised. Capitalised development
costs are amortised over the periods the Group expects to
benefit from selling the products developed. Amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. These are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited




80

gy S E L R
Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. FESHERHE (&)

()

RECTERERAA

TREEZRE
TREESNBERES QP& TR
NETEAASEMESRTRBNAE

EReREEZ TERETRBIEAE
BT BRIFBRA T —ERZEERSE
2 ATBERBUE ¢

-  EBARERMBERE

- EBRAEH - WHEKIEKEEMEE
BN BEAE

- EBABETREEESETHA
B ELR

- B WS EERERRES
BEANEMEEBEAFT T
2K

- REZTAZRENAAEBRZE
A5 B TREEENERA -

B RS MEENRERY B0
HRABRNE  BRASREAEY
EEHARRSRRRETHBLAD o
RETBRMEOE (BTFRR) %48
Bl PO MR T 2 (RIS - bA R R
BIE R I BB M E R St 5 4SS
REETHES -

A BT RN ZEER AR ZE
RN EYSIRLRRERR - ARER
CHRARERMERGHBRRASRE
(TEBREHRRELEZBREERBR) %
ZeREERAERNE (MY SR
RRETE 2 BERMEX) R R EM
ZER - FRESRENREESL 2 B
FEIRERTER o

R ERERE - REEBRSERD - M
BREROFBUE TR EREEL
=1 QIR ATRER 2B E R B R T
B - HLSENSEREREE  REE
BB BN EDRE E B RERIBIE R
BT REL IR B HRAR - B E S
RN EL 2 MR RS o

—E-AEER

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the group
of financial assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status of debtors
in the group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The amount of loss is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost would
have been had impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGU") that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see Note 3(t)),
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1)

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost
of completion and applicable selling expenses. Cost is
determined using weighted average basis, and in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
trade and other payables, accruals, amounts due to a related
company and a non-controlling shareholder and derivative
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
interest related charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 3(v)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss.
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(n) Financial liabilities (Continued)
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Trade payable, accruals and other payables and amounts
due from a related company and non-controlling
interests

These are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative
is prohibited.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated at initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are
met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses
on them on a different basis; or

- the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information about the
group of financial liabilities is provided internally on that
basis to the key management personnel; or

- the financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market transactions or
using a valuation technique where no active market exists.
Fair value gain or loss does not include any dividend or
interest earned on these financial assets. Dividend and interest
income is recognised in accordance with the Group’s polices.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Leases (Continued)

0}

(i)

(iii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property is
classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see
note 3(h)).

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss on straight-
line method over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Leases (Continued)

(iv) Assets leased out under finance leases as the

lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired
in a business combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently measured
at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above and the amount
initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation, if
appropriate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Share capital

(r)

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits) to the extent that they are incremental cost directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and the use by others of
the Group’s assets yielding interest. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal installments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease terms. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis using
effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

()

Government grants

These are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Grants
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants are
intended to compensate, whilst those relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are included as deferred
income liability in the statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payment and interests in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU (see note 3(k)),
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
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Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group'’s
obligations under these plans are limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation
plans to certain employees and a supplier. All employee
services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date and
excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the equity instruments granted vest immediately unless
the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with a
corresponding increase in the share option reserve in equity.
If vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of equity instruments expected to vest differs
from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. After vesting date, when
the vested share options are later forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

For shares transferred to an employee of the Company by
the Company’s ultimate holding company, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value of
shares granted at the grant date, and is expensed on straight-
line method over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in equity. At each reporting date, for shares granted
to an employee with non-market performance vesting
conditions, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised, as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset, during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. A qualifying asset is an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs
are expensed when incurred.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Accounting for income tax
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interests in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income tax are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Accounting for income tax (Continued)

(x)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the chief operating decision maker
(i.e. executive directors) for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to
the executive Directors are determined following the Group’s
major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:
(i) Cyanide and its derivative products: Research and
development, manufacture and sale of cyanide and its

derivative products;

(i)  Alcohol products: Research and development,
manufacture and sale of alcohol products;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) DE®mE (&) (x) Segment reporting (Continued)
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(i)  Chloroacetic acid and its derivative products: Research
and development, manufacture and sale of chloroacetic
acid and its derivative products; and

(iv) Other chemical products: Sale of other chemical
products, e.g. steam and fine petrochemical products.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment
sales are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

- expenses related to share-based payments

- rental income, rental costs and fair value change related
to investment properties

- share of profit/loss of a joint venture

— fair value change on derivative financial instruments

-  BKEA —  finance costs
- TS —  income tax
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- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but investment properties. In
addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. These include
deferred tax liabilities attributable to investment properties
and the Group’s headquarters, and borrowings undertaken
specifically to fund the acquisition of these assets. No
asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited



94

B RS R AR BT RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. FESHERHE (&)

(y) BAEtR
(@) —RMALTHZEMUATZRIEKE
MTREARE B G RAE  AIIREX
AL :

RECTERERAA

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

AR RAEIE R AR E

BAKEREEATEN
%

=2 ST NN RS /N
ZEBEEASR °

BRI MR ER - — 'R
BNER AN [ A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

ERNASEER—%E
MR8 (BRIERE AR
N =PNCIDSAC Y iy NG
Y EEERE) -

—BAEEES—EAEEN
BERRRAERA (HE
s EEEBMBEEET
RERNBEARHEZER
) e
MEBERARR-F=7
MNEERT -
—BAELEF=—BERNE
QR M —EEEE
F-BRIZBENT -
ERERAKENALKHE
PR B A B B 18 i 2k
HIBER IR B AIFT & °

BERmL@BEmEAL
PRI RIS o

EX@O)EMEALHE

BEEARENLAEZLE

B (ARERBNERR]) |
ZEEEAR -

ZERNEMBEE (T
A pk B A AR5 H 8 AN B
ZHARREHEEEEA
SR

—E-AEER

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.



B RS R AR BT EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
HEZZT—XF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. FESHEME (&) 3.
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(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
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(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

EHEEREA o domestic partner.
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JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(i) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(ii) Estimated fair values of investment properties
The Group appointed an independent valuation firm to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining
the fair values, the valuers have used a method of valuation
which involves input of certain estimates. The Directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.
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(iv)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates are
based on the current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ taste and competitors’ actions in response to serve
industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates by each
reporting date.

The assessment of the estimated net realisable value involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimates, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-down/
reversal of write-down in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement entered between
the Company and the joint venture partner (the “JV Partner”)
on 30 June 2011 (the “JV Agreement”), the Company and
the JV Partner are granted call and put option respectively
that entitled the Company to require the JV Partner to sell JV
Partner’s 45% interest in the joint venture and entitled the
JV Partner to require the Company to purchase JV Partner’s
45% interest in the joint venture (Note 32). The derivative
financial instruments were measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The fair value of derivative financial
instruments was estimated by an independent valuation firm
based on Binomial Lattice Model. It should be noted that
the valuation was based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ affect the
estimation of the fair value of derivative financial instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes and the timing of payment of the
related taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. When the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
the subsidiaries in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividends, where the Group considers that
if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC
earned after 1 January 2008 will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes are provided.
Details of the unrecognised deferred tax liabilities in this
respect are set out in note 19.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining
fair value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value. For more detailed information in
relation to the fair value measurement of the items above,
please refer to note 40(v).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3(k). The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations, which require
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive Directors have identified the Group’s four product
and service lines as operating segments as further described in note

3(x).
RELEDE DIRKEAR S P EHEE These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are
2= MREAE N EIRFE —E%E(EL - made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.
ZE-RE
2016
HZER
HELEUR HTKER Hith
HTEER Chloroacetic {tIER
Cyanide and BEER acidand its Other
its derivative Alcohol  derivative chemical a5t
products products products products Total
ARBTR AR®BTR AR®BTR AR®TR AR%¥Tx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B Revenue:
REIREP From external customers 1,194,336 19,479 20,527 31,047 1,265,389
D EfE 2 E Inter-segment revenue - 1,073 229,114 146 230,333
A2EMHOE2EHEEE  Reportable segment revenue 1,194,336 20,552 249,641 31,193 1,495,722
G508 iyl Reportable segment profit 355,613 1,913 113,989 6,864 478,379
WE - WENREIE  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 50,815 107 14,207 12,419 77,548
WORZEAT&I8F (B2 Write-down of inventories
=E to net realisable value 1,743 - - - 1,743
2RI MBEE Reportable segment
assets 855,813 3,579 72,605 139,884 1,071,881
FREAHEEEM  Additions to non-current
segment assets 39,065 - 2,581 15,975 57,621
2B BB Reportable segment
liabilities 65,165 884 6,412 29,872 102,333
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HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. DEPER (&) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
—T—RF
2015
KR
RELEMR HTFER Hith
HETHER Chloroacetic It IESR
Cyanide and Fef8EMm  acidandits Other
its derivative Alcohol derivative chemical B
products products products products Total

ARBTE  ARETT ARETT AREBTE AR®TRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B Revenue:

REINARP From external customers 1,015,791 64,398 28,550 14,669 1,123,408
DEPfE 2 & ¥R Inter-segment revenue = 8,937 188,853 416 198,206
GG A+ Reportable segment revenue 1,015,791 73,335 217,403 15,085 1,321,614
A2 2= Reportable segment profit 276,943 5,616 59,042 5,701 347,302

W - BEKREITE  Depredation of property,

plant and equipment 42,583 259 13,410 10,565 66,817
WRERZIRFEZ Reversal of write-down of
ey FE B # inventories to net
realisable value (43) = - - (43)

2B WEE Reportable segment
assets 772,880 5,897 89,969 80,599 949,345

FREDIPEEREM  Additions to non-current
segment assets 73,621 - 4,232 11,700 89,553

AERS BB Reportable segment
liabilities 50,622 963 8,532 23,968 84,085

RECTERBRAR TR FFER
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5.

TEER (F)

ASKEEEDHAE 2 S RAA RS
BRI 2 ANEE T ZM B EIR 2 HRN

—E—ARF+=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile
to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the financial

e statements are as follows:
—RE —T—hEF
2016 2015
ARBT T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A 2RO B2 LR Reportable segment revenue 1,495,722 1,321,614
EH D 2R 2 & 3 RE Elimination of inter-segment revenue (230,333) (198,206)
AL ERE Consolidated revenue 1,265,389 1,123,408
CIEE 5o iy Reportable segment profit 478,379 347,302
el A Rental income 792 727
WEYFEENIEE Revaluation gain on investment properties 3,090 1,220
HXT%E, EERMN 2 Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
AR 2 (3,793) (2,736)

Eﬁ%ﬂzzﬁ Finance costs (1,212) (1,063)
PTESMIA Fair value gain on derivative financial

N EE instruments 10,318 3,161

TP BERA Unallocated corporate income 12,187 3,958

TN B2 MY Unallocated corporate expenses (52,553) (43,398)
Bl —REE AR Share of loss of a joint venture

&8 (6,734) (6,961)
5 ZBME 2 m A Elimination of inter-segment profit (115,796) (55,173)
BRPT1S T ATAR S 8 A Consolidated profit before income tax 324,678 247,037
A2HH e BE Reportable segment assets 1,071,881 949,345
N—KEERNFLZ Interests in a joint venture

= 22,607 31,576
ER—KEERT] Amount due from a joint venture

A 52,883 40,546
TEfS AR EFRIE Prepaid land lease payments 61,429 51,415
EME Investment properties 18,820 15,730
REFHIBEE Deferred tax assets 2,180 2,422
FEWEF TSR %?X Finance lease receivable 13,414 14,210
RTTRIR B AEER Bank and cash balances 184,320 117,661
W - R MEE Property, plant and equipment 165,421 151,867
PTEEmMEE Derivative financial assets 2,993 =
HihbEEE Other corporate assets 24,612 7,994
IREBAEE Consolidated total assets 1,620,560 1,382,766
A 237 \*BZ (8 Reportable segment liabilities 102,333 84,085
RITER Bank borrowings 56,816 32,072
BLERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 21,902 7,496
MBS E Current tax liabilities 30,570 19,780
PTESHEaE Derivative financial liabilities - 7,325
HErEaE Other corporate liabilities 91,312 54,008
LERAaE Consolidated total liabilities 302,933 204,766

Annual Report 2016
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HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. oHER (&)

AEEREINREF 2 EXBE D BATHIE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers are divided into the

following geographical areas:

—E-REF —E—1F

2016 2015

AR®T R AREEFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R (i) The PRC (domicile) 1,038,684 928,193
EE United States of America 58,832 60,661
ENfE India 56,805 34,350
EREH Ireland 18,774 16,973
= Taiwan 15,300 13,347
EAth Others 76,994 69,884
1,265,389 1,123,408

B2 MBS NN EQREHEREE -
KA IERBAEERTRTE - Hme
HHIE D 2 PRBAE -

BE_ZT-—RFt_A=+t—HLFE I
BE -FEPHAKREZLREMNI0% A L

(Z=—HF &) -

RECTERERAA

—E-AEER

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. No geographical location of non-
current assets is presented as the substantial non-current assets are

physically based in the PRC.

There was no single customer that contributed to 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:

Nil).
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6. ERFRHMUA 6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
AEBZFEXEBEEMTI4EE - XEH The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 34. Revenue
FAZEBEBEERRAMPAD #ERLN from the Group’s principal activities and other income recognised
N during the year are as follows:

—B-REF —E—ARF
2016 2015
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=E S0 Revenue
HERRELLEM R Sales of cyanide and its derivative products

HTREm 1,194,336 1,015,791
HEMAE W Sales of alcohol products 19,479 64,398
HERBER Sales of chloroacetic acid and its

ETHER derivative products 20,527 28,550
SHE R TEM Sales of other chemical products 31,047 14,669

1,265,389 1,123,408
Hap A Other income
HEWE - BE K Gain on disposals of property,

JAEFTIS W plant and equipment 110 =
T AL Government grants 1,289 195
RITHEHA Bank interest income 1,780 1,689 103
—XEERRFEMA Interest income from a joint venture 1,120 1,049
B AEE R BUA Interest income from finance lease 966 1,054
TEFEU A REE] (B7E 28) Release of deferred income (note 28) 3,640 3,449
HBHA Rental income 792 727
b 5 e Exchange gains, net 6,345 5,295
TR A Sundry Income 825 439

16,867 13,897

7. BBRA 7. FINANCE COSTS

—E-KE —T-hF
2016 2015
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITERHE - 255 Interest on bank loans, all of which contain

BHEKRENRER a repayment on demand clause

fERR 1,190 1,063
B — BT R A Interest on loan from a non-controlling

EREF S shareholder 22 =

1,212 1,063
AMBERRITER (BEHAFREREERRK The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including
HZEHER) RERBEFAHTETERE term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in
HA 2 BTG RIS o accordance with the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in

the loan agreements.
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BR AT SB A& R 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
—~RE —hHF
2016 2015
ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BREFST AR AE Profit before income tax is arrived at after
R (T A) - charging/(crediting):
ZE=ME (FIFE10@)) Directors’ emoluments (note 10(a))
-18& — Fees 326 310
-¥He - WIBEAR — Salaries, discretionary bonus and
HAbiaF| other benefits 3,809 3,766
— R IRREFIET B K — Retirement benefit scheme contributions 104 107
4,239 4,183
H b B KA Other employee costs 90,038 77,298
AR 4 E LARR 1 Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
XA 2 FRIAR X 3,793 2,736
RIREAETEI R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 6,509 5,354
BiEB KA Total employee costs 104,579 89,571
1Z SR B & Auditors’ remuneration 791 602
Taf i EFHIE Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
g 1,386 1,293
HRARZ 2 TFERKAR Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
(MI=ED) - B3E (note i), including 852,606 791,433
- WO = T E IR FE 2 — Write-down of inventories to net
FE+5 realisable value 1,743 =
- WO =T &R E 2 — Reversal of write-down of inventories to net
FEZBESHE realisable value - (43)
=N Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
RIEGITE 80,419 69,359
B W IR R EEE Impairment loss on trade receivables 4 3,232
B S RBRRERIEZ Impairment loss on trade receivables written back
B 7% (247) =
BEYE BEXR (Gain)/Loss on disposals of property,
Btz (W) plant and equipment, net
EiERE (110) 7
BHAMEELT R Minimum lease payments under operating leases
EFHKEHEE in respect of leasehold land and buildings
E—{Eﬁﬂ‘é?x 1,698 892
TR (FiaEii) Research costs (note ii) 3,326 4,950

—E-AEER
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HEZZT—XF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

8. ERATEBANER (&) 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

BisE Notes:

) ERREHAINFERABEAOAER (i) Cost of inventories recognised as an expenses includes approximately
77548000 (— T —HF: ARK RMB77,548,000 (2015: RMB66,817,000) relating to depreciation
66,817,0007T) < HEAMER I RHAR expenses and approximately RMB76,992,000 (2015: RMB67,038,000)
76992000 (T —HF: ARK relating to employee costs. These amounts are also included in the
67,038,0007T) 2 HHEAEEKA - EHEESHE respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

IMEFATE EXSITHRBENEBESREF

REBEE_ZE-—RF+_A=+—HIFE " During the year ended 31 December 2015, write-down of inventories
TFEMOR £ 54 A R ¥ 43,000 7T B2 B # - of approximately RMB43,000 was reversed as the market price of
RAREBEFEEMSERE_T—HFMO these inventories was increased in 2015.

S

iy WMRARKEBIELHAREE7050007T (ZF (i)  Research costs include approximately RMB705,000 (2015:
—hF : AR#539,0007t) 2 HEEITER RMB539,000) relating to depreciation expenses and approximately
S R#H AR 1,090,000 (Z T —FHF : RMB1,090,000 (2015: RMB3,756,000) relating to employee costs.
AR#3,756,0007T) 2 HHEEEKAE - B These amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
e EBEE EXSTHRENRRES disclosed separately above.

o
9. FEHRX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—E-REF —T—RHF 105
2016 2015
ARET AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BNEATRIE — A Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
EFFH
- REEHIA — Tax for the year 83,414 66,321
- BEFE — Under/(Over)-provision in prior year
DR (Z1R) BE 349 (777)
- R EIAR BIELRRE — PRC dividend withholding tax 8,919 5,936
92,682 71,480
EERIE (FIRE19) Deferred tax (note 19) 12,537 3,186
TS Income tax expense 105,219 74,666
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FRiSHiRx (&)

PTG BB S BRI PSR R A R B
FISBIR S 2 T2 RN T ¢

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and profit before
income tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as

follows:
—E-XEF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
bR PT1S 53 Bl Profit before income tax 324,678 247,037
LR B EFTS Tax at PRC enterprise income tax rate of 25%
T 25% (2015: 25%)
—E—hF:
25%) TE 2 BiA 81,170 61,759
T BREZ 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
MG T & 2,611 3,249
R R B TEHE R PRC dividend withholding tax 16,919 9,936
RIERB B EEL Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
MiGT & 828 -
BAFE Under/(Over)-provision in prior year
PR (Z1R) BiA 349 (777)
Hth Others 3,342 499
TSt Income tax expense 105,219 74,666

AR AEEZ WAL FERBELLIRER
B MW EELEBNSHEE -

e Ak ST BT A RIZB IR R B P15 H
T 25% MM — T — NE 7R EMEMN
(ZZ—FH%F :25%) °

RIBEFECEMASTEREERER  BA
—FENF—A— BERF B ERERNE
FISRBIALE - FFPBERERELRI10%
B R TRIRT - RIEB T IBE,RHE
MBS RIERR - REE—F—RF
T-_A=+—HALFE AEECHTERA
RIERA 10 % TRIRBTL X -

RECTERBRAR TR FFER

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in nor derives from Hong Kong.

The subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% for 2016 (2015: 25%).

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its related
regulations, non-PRC-resident enterprises are levied withholding tax
at 10% (unless reduced by tax treaties/arrangements) on dividends
receivable from PRC enterprises for profits earned since 1 January
2008. The Group has adopted 10% withholding tax rate for PRC
withholding tax purpose during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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10. EEREREEENHE 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEM< (a) Directors’ Emoluments
EfNEMTFEBUEE 20T Emoluments paid or payables to each Director were as
follows:

BIRER

HE G

Retirement

HiEA HETAL benefit
e e Other  Discretionary scheme it
Fees Salaries benefits bonus  contributions Total
ARETT ARETFTT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

“E-RE 2016

BTES Executive Directors

£l Liu Hongliang - 767 13 100 14 894
T Wang Zijiang - 760 28 110 30 928
5 Guo Xitian - 760 28 110 30 928
i Gao Feng - 983 40 110 30 1,163

BYFHTESE Independent
non-executive

Directors 107
RHE Leung Kam Wan 120 - - - - 120
REE Gao Baoyu 103 - - - - 103
2Rk Liu Chenguang 103 - - - - 103
ZZ—FA5 Total for 2016 326 3,270 109 430 104 4,239

“E-IF 2015

HTEE Executive Directors

el Liu Hongliang = 990 25 110 27 1,152
FFI Wang Zijiang - 759 24 9% 27 904
7% H Guo Xitian = 759 24 % 27 904
S Gao Feng = 464 22 53 16 555

FERK (R Guo Yucheng
B (resigned on
AAZ+ZH  22May2015)
BHE) = 298 9 4 10 358

BIFHTEE Independent non-

executive

Directors
RRE Leung Kam Wan 114 - - - - 114
REL Gao Baoyu 98 - - - - 98
£l Liu Chenguang 98 - - - - 98
ZT-AFAEF  Total for 2015 310 3,270 104 392 107 4,183

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. EEREREEENMNE (&)

(a) EEM= (&)

FA - AEEY B AEAESESER
S - (ERINARNEE Z 2B SRR 8
B (ZZ—hF: |-

FAR TECARHERETAESETH
RAREBHEETAME (ZF—0%F:
i)

TEESMEAL

FREAKEEEHEZABAL
B =R (ZF—HF ORB) RE
= REMSZHEC RRR Lo
e FRERMNESRME (ZT—H1F:
—%&) AEZBEmT

(b)

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year (2015: Nil).

There are no arrangements under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the year (2015: Nil).

Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group during the year included three (2015: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. Emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2015: one) individuals during the year are as follows:

R ALS —T-hHF
2016 2015
ARET R ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
e MIEEAKR Salaries, discretionary bonus and other benefits
Hp 1,947 1,118
RINEFFT B Retirement benefit scheme contributions 46 15
A E AR 1D Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
A 2 FRIAR X 149 96
2,142 1,229
NS BRATEE : The emoluments were within the following band:
A
Number of Individuals
—E-REF —E—RF
2016 2015
75% 1,000,001 7t2  Emolument band
B ¥ 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 1

Il
A
|
Sk
I
iy
-

RECTERERAA
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1. BE 11. DIVIDEND
—E-RE¥ —E-hF
2016 2015
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B BTEFERARE Final dividend paid in respect
BB 0.075 7T of prior year HK$0.075
—E—RF: (2015: HK$0.045) per share
75#0.0457T) 54,293 30,610
ENAFEFRHRE Interim dividend paid in respect
BB 0.047T of current year HK$0.04
(ZZE—HR%F: (2015: HK$0.025) per share
75 0.0257T) 29,611 17,404
83,904 48,014
RZB—+F=A -++HBT2E%HL At a meeting held on 27 March 2017, the Directors recommended a
BEEBIREARARE SR EERAER0.08 final dividend HK$0.08 per ordinary share. The proposed dividends
TC o BB R ETHEIRKRBATRENK are not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements.
8 o
12. BRER 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
o =0 s . . . . . 109
RATIHB ANEHSRERNREERT TR The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
BATBRTE to owners of the Company is based on the following data:
—E-AF —T—RF
2016 2015
ARMT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RNARER AEG Profit for the year attributable
REEZ G A to owners of the Company 219,603 172,371
EERHE
Number of ordinary shares
—E-AF —Z2—h%F
2016 2015
] T
‘000 ‘000
FTEERERET 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
AR INRET I8 for the purpose of basic earnings per share 847,575 846,378
BESEERRKR Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
B - BN — share options 1,162 99
AEEREERN Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TmAR IR 98 for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 848,737 846,977
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13. % - BERRE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

G- BT
RERRE
REMELE BERE RE Furniture, ERIE
BT Leasehold Plant and Motor  fixturesand  Construction &t
Buildings  improvements machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
AREFTL AREFT AREFTL AREFT AREFT AREFTL AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=Z-1f As at 1 January 2015
-B-H
AR Cost 210318 35 613,461 2,524 3,294 66,094 895,726
ZEMER Accumulated depreciation
HEEE and impairment loss (46,892) (35) (293,440) (1,639) (1,606) = (343,612)
EHFE Net carrying amount 163,426 = 320,021 885 1,688 66,094 552,114
REEE Net carrying amount
RZZ—1F As at 1 January 2015
—R—-AH 163,426 = 320,021 885 1,688 66,094 552,114
#1n Additions 16,891 = 12,278 = 1,070 88,947 119,186
e Disposals - - (8) = = = 8
& Depreciation (10,754) - (57,592) (346) (667) = (69,359)
i Transfer 6,559 = 105,256 = 589 (112,404) =
RZE-1E As at 31 December 2015
+=A=t+-H 176,122 = 379,955 539 2,680 42,637 601,933
RZE-1% As at 31 December 2015
+ZA=1-H
PR Cost 233,768 35 730,982 2,524 4,953 42,637 1,014,899
REMER Accumulated depreciation
HEEE and impairment loss (57,646) (35) (351,027) (1,985) 2,273) = (412,966)
REFE Net carrying amount 176,122 - 379,955 539 2,680 42,637 601,933
REFE Net carrying amount
RZZ—RE As at 1 January 2016
—A—-AH 176,122 - 379,955 539 2,680 42,637 601,933
BBGEAMEA  Acquired through business
(MzE37) combination (note 37) 21,938 - 43,031 - 514 - 65,483
10 Additions 2,439 - 13,506 1,241 849 47,447 65,482
e Disposals - - - @ - - @
il Depreciation (11,701) - (67,469) (367) (882) - (80,419)
i Transfer 7303 - 52,050 - - (59,353) -
RZE-RE As at 31 December 2016
+=A=t+-H 196,101 - 421,013 1,409 3,161 30,731 652,475
RZE-~%E As at 31 December 2016
+ZA=1-H
AR Cost 268,151 35 851,381 3,359 6,799 30,731 1,160,456
ZRIATER Accumulated depreciation
HEEE and impairment loss (72,050) (35) (430,308) (1,950) (3,638) - (507,981)
EEFE Net carrying amount 196,101 - 421,013 1,409 3,161 30,731 652,475
RECIEZERERIET ZF—REER
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13. W% BERSKHE (&) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
REE 2 EFUNRPHBLORE 2R A The Group’s buildings are situated on leasehold lands under
B4 o medium-term in the PRC.

R=ZB—"F+-A=+—8 BRNEEH As at 31 December 2016, building ownership certificates of
HNEEFE DA SR B R BB A EFT AR S T1T certain buildings with net carrying amount of approximately
BAZFr - BREFE X A R 34,865,0007T RMB34,865,000 (2015: RMB36,798,000) have not yet been
—E—hHF : AR¥36,798,0007T) 2 & T obtained due to additional time will be required to finalise certain
BEYMMEERBINRIG - REASH administrative process for the registration of the transfer of legal
HREDEEERCER  AEEBRET X title. In the opinion of the PRC legal advisor of the Group, the
ZERNER TES Y EEET - Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership certificates
without legal impediment.

14. AfFLTHEERE 14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E—REF —ET—1F

2016 2015

AR%TR ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

n—A—H At 1 January 51,415 52,708
RATESHEA Acquired through business combination

(Bft=E 37) (note 37) 11,400 -
TAN T A EFRIE Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

iy (1,386) (1,293) M
Rt+t—A=+—H At 31 December 61,429 51,415
BNEREE s (B BHEE Current portion (included in prepayments and

A FRIE R E e other receivables)

W) (1,571) (1,293)
FERNERES Non-current portion 59,858 50,122
REE 2 TN T ERIB TR B 2 H The Group’s prepaid land lease payments are held under medium-
HEHE - term in the PRC.

15. REW= 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FREPBRRRAMZ25 M EREEZ BN Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
™ statement of financial position can be summarised as follows:

= —T—hF

2016 2015

AR¥T T AREBFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

n—A—H At 1 January 15,730 14,510
WEYFEEMIEE Revaluation gain on investment properties 3,090 1,220
KR+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 18,820 15,730
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15. REWE (&)

REMENR_FT-—A"Ft+_A=1+—HAB
MAFRPRIER (B EZREY X
iR ETEM BEMBEREAFER

Sz 27
fﬁﬁ@v°

AEBEZREMEUNILTHHEHERE 2+
EEE L -

FEREMENDIAERFE=ZLRNEE
HAREAE - RBE-ZT—RF+-A
=t+—BLEFE  WERE—FHERE R
B2 EHER - BB ARBHE=RH -

BREWMEZAARENRBERRAAERL
BOAEE - MUBRERATLBEMEZUE
HEIT o FUUKRN - BB ME - HERULE
ZRILBEDEITOMN

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2016 by
an independent firm of chartered surveyors, who has the recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued.
Revaluation gain was recognised in profit or loss for the year.

The Group's investment properties are situated on leasehold lands
under medium-term in the PRC.

The fair value of all the investment properties is a Level 3 recurring
fair value measurement. During the year ended 31 December
2016, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

The fair value of investment properties is determined using direct
comparison approach based on the principle of substitution, where
the comparison is made based on asking prices of comparable
properties. Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature,
character and location are analysed.

giE
Range
—E-REF —ET—hF
AaEER@MAE : Unobservable input(s): 2016 2015
VIR 2 Premium (discount) on characteristic
wlE (Frag) of the properties -3% to 38% -10% to 26%

BREMZEORE (BN /R 1E -
FRELVE) BRERITEES - #iEH%
HEESXBEZAAE -

EERMNFRAL ELE - EEYEODA
EfEREN&E S RREERNRE - IR
BEEERERBR -

RECTERBRAR TR FFER

Higher premium or discount for the characteristic (including size,
scale, nature, character and location) of the investment properties
will result in correspondingly higher or lower fair value.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.
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16.

17.

BmE 16. GOODWILL
—~E —ET—hF
2016 2015
ARETR ARETIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

MBRFEAHEA Acquired through business combination
(P 37) (note 37) 17,668 =
W+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 17,668 -

RETRERR  BENEETHERENE
TEHEMN  ZABNENE  RENHE
B E TEMIERR

REEABMAAWESERBERER
EE ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁ_ﬁﬁt}&mﬁﬁﬁﬂ
HeRETEAG o AFHAMEHIR SR
§T§1ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁé$i@i‘§$3% (TEBBHR B
TAT¥RAERE) #HE - AR

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
the CGU of Jiangsu Chunxiao which is engaged in research and
development, manufacture and sales of fine chemical products.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined from
value-in-use calculation based on cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3%, which does not exceed the

ERWA WERWEBFARSESEMLT long-term growth rate for the chemical industry in the PRC. The
[P =R discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

—NE

2016

R Growth rate 3%
FATHTHE Pre-tax discount rate 21%

BT bSO ETR & B
MERRRS  BELERA - DEEAR
SR EBUVARBOALLD - TEF
A AEEENRLELBRRTEMA

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the value-in-use of the CGU, management is not aware of any
other probable changes that would necessitate changes in the key
assumptions. Management determines that the CGU containing

BE - goodwill does not suffer any impairment.
R—REE QTR W — 17. INTERESTS INNAMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT
=l UNEIE S| VENTURE
—RE —hE
2016 2015
AR®ET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE(EEEFE Share of net assets 23,595 32,195
A—RAEEARIHEEMA  Unrealised profit on goods sold to
AEIR @7 a joint venture (988) (619)
22,607 31,576
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EES
17.

RECTERERAA

ZE—RETZA=1—HAILEE For the yea

L LB o e

AEATRE (F)
NE—AFER-F—HEFA=F—
B AEEABATHEDT

r ended 31 December 2016

17. INTERESTS INNAMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT

VENTURE (Continued)

Particulars of the joint venture of the Group as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

AL/ BRITEE/
RUREEHE BARRAZEE RAREEREZADL
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued Percentage of
£ establishment and ordinary/paid-up registered equity attributable TEXH
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
HE FEE
Direct Indirect
BRRABKRARAR &b 1007 5% - RERR
(Es&E])
Dekel Investment Holdings Hong Kong HK$100 55% = Investment holding
Limited ("Dekel Investment")
B ERITHERAR E - SMEEA LR 14,051,190 % T - 55% & RERHEE—R
(MEnEs]) (M EBat%]) ([%7)) IXARKIEBER
Weifang Dekel Innovative The PRC, wholly owned United States Dollars = 55% Research and development,
Materials Co., Ltd foreign enterprise ("US$") 14,051,190 manufacture and sales of
(“Weifang Dekel") ("WOFE") a type of specialty chemical

R-TF——FRNA=1TH ARAEGER
HEBFREHHEURLERE  BRKRE
HER -_T——FRA-_AETBEILRE
TR —FKINEBERE - AESES -
MRS T EEBEME  BEREE—
BIXABKCBEER  HWRNTAAEEE
AREACTEHBHRAET o

BRRHRTE  ARERFZEEHAELH
Z@é?m%ﬂ ERNALERIENEEREN
MELRHNBEBEE  MXERESKE
RASIEREA - W - BRI HRE
B AREHERTARBEAERN M
BERRNMERESRAARNRT A EEH
—HRAE - REFEUMBEREERE 115
&é“ﬁmaﬂﬁﬁééﬁT'ﬁﬁ%%E
ERT AR AP B®REK

—E-AEER

for industrial use

On 30 June 2011, the Company entered into the JV Agreement
with the JV Partner to form Dekel Investment, which then

established a WOFE, Weifang Dekel in Weifang City, Shandong
Province, the PRC on 2 June 2012. The principal activity of Weifang
Dekel is engaged in the research and development, manufacture
and sales of a type of specialty chemical for industrial use, which is
in line with the Group’s strategy to expand its chemical business.

The contractual arrangement provides the Group with only the
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement, with the rights to
the assets and obligation for the liabilities of the joint arrangement
resting primarily with Dekel Investment and Weifang Dekel. Also,
the contractual arrangement confers joint control over the relevant
activities of the arrangement to the Group and the JV Partner
and the relevant activities of the joint venture require unanimous
consent from the Company and the JV Partner. Under HKFRS 11,
this joint arrangement is classified as a joint venture and has been
included in the consolidated financial statements using equity
method.
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17. R—REEQAT 2R ER—K 17. INTERESTS INJAMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT
g %klﬁ (&) VENTURE (Continued)
EeRENRANBER B MM T Summarised consolidated financial information of Dekel Investment
is set out below:
—RE —T—hF
2016 2015
ARETR AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R+=—B=+—8 As at 31 December
EmENEE Non-current assets 102,501 104,561
MENVEE Current assets 48,837 40,658
mENEE Current liabilities 95,821 73,268
SEMBBE Non-current liabilities 12,617 13,414
i e Included in the above amounts are:
HeFRLEEER Cash and cash equivalents 6,376 10,541
mMETRIAE Current financial liabilities
(TBREZENER (excluding trade and other payables)
H At FETFRIE) 89,685 69,010
ERBCHEE Non-current financial liabilities
("B IEE AL FEAT (excluding other payable and provision)
FE R ) 12,617 13,414
115
BEt+t=-A=t+—HL Year ended 31 December
FE
EEE Revenue 60,678 33,494
FEEE Loss for the year (12,243) (12,657)
H b 2w Other comprehensive income (3,393) (2,954)
EHREEERE Total comprehensive income (15,636) (15,611)
LSRR Included in the above amounts are:
rE R E Depreciation and amortisation 10,032 8,518
FE WA Interest income 47 226
MEFRX Interest expense 3,024 2,965
Frig T e Income tax credit 3,948 4,354
R-B—RF+t-A=1+—H f2QFYL The joint venture had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December
BYRAE (ZT—0F 8- 2016 (2015: Nil).

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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17.

18.

RECTERERAA

R—EE AR 2D R —=

SEQNANE (B)

R{E R AEBERIEEERE 2 ERE

INTERESTS INNAMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT
VENTURE (Continued)

The Group’s share of the joint venture’s capital commitments at the

EOT reporting date is as follows:
—E—XF —E—ARF
2016 2015
ARBTT AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
REESIE S pd ) E Contracted but not provided for acquisition of
EREE s WESE property, plant and equipment 2,572 2,824

R_E—RNER_TE—RAF+-_A=+—
B BR—ZRAEEQFFIEAELRE 25
RER—FREE  EHEEEAREHAK
HERARNE31,444,000T (ZB—HF
AR #29,819,0007T) BIZE B IRITRIZESR
ERE I £ 335 EEL S - R —FRE
@ o

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the amount due from a joint
venture was unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year,
except for the shareholder’s loan to a joint venture amounted to
RMB31,444,000 (2015: RMB29,819,000) with interest-bearing at
the HIBOR interbank rate plus 335 basis points and repayable within
one year.

FE U Bt 75 FH B 7R IE FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE
—E-RE —ZT—hHE
2016 2015
AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IERED Non-current 12,617 13,413
Vit Current 797 797
13,414 14,210

HERH Lease arrangements

AEBETETNEAERARUAEEZE
MERARNEBEER  ARRMBHEEHA
TRERR - IAHEAUAREE -/
BHENHRS204F - BERFEEENGE
B R FHRE

—E-AEER

The legal titles of certain of the Group’s buildings are registered
under the name of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and
are leased out under finance lease to the joint venture. The lease is
denominated in RMB. The term of finance lease entered into is 20
years which is approximate to the estimated economic useful life of
the whole asset.
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18. W EHERE (&)
BB RS REKNFRIE

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Amounts receivable under finance lease

BRIEHEERENERE
RIEHERE Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
—E-RE —ZT—FhF —E-RE —ET—0F
2016 2015 2016 2015
AR¥T AREF T AR¥T R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BB —F Not later than one year 1,736 1,794 797 797
HRiE—F Later than one year and
BT BARTF not later than
five years 6,372 6,601 3,187 3,187
BEAF Later than five years 13,475 14,981 9,430 10,226
21,583 23,376 13,414 14,210
A 0 AR EHRER Less: unearned finance
g A income (8,169) (9,166) THEAN/A NEFN/A
JEURIERE Present value of
RIEMIRE minimum lease
payments receivable 13,414 14,210 13,414 14,210

RZZ—AR"F+ZA=+—8 ' BEMKH
EMMEEMNEEMEBRIENSREEMLLE
BE(ZZ—HF:8\)-

MRZB—RE+-A=+—8 HEZF=R
HHREERFERIN20% (ZZ—HF : 20%)
RZBFE (EERRET) 518 - F - ¥
BERFAEET2% (ZE—HF :72%)

AEBISEABRANREERBENERT
HESEFHERT -

Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance lease
as at 31 December 2016 are estimated at no value (2015: Nil).

As at 31 December 2016, interest rate in the lease is calculated by
prime interest rate plus 20% (2015: 20%) as floating rate which
is subject to the periodic review. Average effective interest rate is
approximately 7.2% (2015: 7.2%) per annum during the year.

The Group is not permitted to sell or pledge the leased building in
the absence of default by the lessee.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited

117



118

gy S E L R
Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

19. ELEHIR 19. DEFERRED TAX
AEEEBRUTEBELCHEBEE (8 The following is the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
&) : by the Group:
BHRBLF
ROBAE Bt
Undistributed HERE
RENZE BEWA profits Prepaid
WBER Investment Deferred of foreign land lease &t
Tax losses properties income subsidiaries payments Total
AEETT AEETT NG S NG S ARBT AEETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=Z—RF—F—H  At1lanuary 2015 - (3,138) 1,250 - - (1,889)
itABE/ (BB&EMB) Credit(Charge) to profit or
(Ftix9) loss (note 9) 349 (358) 823 (4,000 - (3,186)
RZZ-T1F At 31 December 2015 and
+-A=+-RAk 1 January 2016
£ %¥-A-H 349 (3,496) 2,073 (4,000) - (5,074)
BRLERHEA Acquired through business
(MizE37) combination (note 37) - - - - 2111 2,111)
FABR/ (BB&EMB) Credit(Charge) to profit or
(Fitx9) loss (note 9) (349) (4,295) 107 (8,000) - (12,537)
RIZ—"F At 31 December 2016
+-R=1+-H - (7,791) 2,180 (12,000) (2,111) (19,722)
AN BBt E MM RATE 2 BIER I 45 The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the
ERAAT - consolidated statement of financial position purposes:
—RE —RfF
2016 2015
AR¥T ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRI IAEE Deferred tax assets 2,180 2,422
BEHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities (21,902) (7,496)
(19,722) (5,074)
REEBEH - $El?ﬁt7ﬁ—ﬁﬂ WE AR At the reporting date, the Group has deductible temporary
AR®T04000T (ZT—0F: ARK differences of RMB704,000 (2015: RMB3,017,000) for offsetting
3,017,0007T) MT&%H#PE/@%'J R 5% S Bf against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
BARGEAHRNEREZRE - BERKE in respect of RMB704,000 (2015: RMB3,017,000) due to the
Fm AT FEOR) - B0 kA R K 704,000 7T unpredictability of future profit streams of these subsidiaries which
—T—h%F: AR%3,017,0007T) HERE have such deductible temporary differences.

EHBAEE °

RECTERBRAR TR FFER
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20.

21.

EEBIR (&)

AR AARZEHARERNETHE QRN
KSR - BER R % 2K IR K Al gE [E] 4%
FRZ% BMEARBHNHERIELER
THE & AR#98,706,0007T (ZE— R F :
AR ¥90,746,0007T) + i FE 0 F H ZH 5 5%
ERHFEHNBRARINR-"EZTNF—F—
HEMNREHBFNMEBH N2 —RF
+=—A=+—H ZEXRELBFEFTAEA
R #987,063,0007c (ZZE—HF : AR¥
907,459,000 7T) ©

19.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities of approximately RMB98,706,000 (2015:
RMB90,746,000) have not been established for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in the PRC made after 1 January 2008 because the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and
it is not probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings totalled
approximately RMB987,063,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB907,459,000).

FE 20. INVENTORIES

—E—RE —ET—1F
2016 2015
AR®ET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
E A Raw materials 52,425 37,387
R an Work in progress 14,968 7,267
B Finished goods 63,314 51,647
130,707 96,301

EZRWERRERERE 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
—E—REF —ET—RhF
2016 2015
AR®F T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 IR Trade receivables 183,977 159,804
JE W ZE Bills receivable 248,035 234,827
432,012 394,631

AEBEGETESEFPZEER—RNTF—@
AZXEARE (ZZ2—2F NF—ER
EXNEATE) - BRERERA T EZRITHA
REE  RESBTR-FUR(ZT—1A
FI—FUR) - BURPHELRE ZREE
ERE - AEEB N HRURE RGEREE
ZEH - EEEETERERBIRK

The Group allows credit periods normally ranging from 1 month to
6 months to its trade customers (2015: ranging from 1 month to 6
months). Bills receivable are non-interest bearing bank acceptance
bills and aged within a year upon issuance (2015: within a year).
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.
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21. ESRWERKREREE (&)

RBEEH  BEZRUEREBRRBERER
B HRTE Z BRIk D AT AT

21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable at the reporting date,

based on the invoice date, is stated as follows:

A= —T—hF

2016 2015

ARBT R ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

0£90H 0 to 90 days 338,371 286,100
91 £ 180 H 91 to 180 days 87,606 99,479
1812365 H 181 to 365 days 5,358 8,643
838 365 H Over 365 days 677 409
432,012 394,631

FAEZRYRRERBR 2 ERIIRNT

The below table reconciled impairment loss of trade receivable for

the year:
—E-AE —E—TF
2016 2015
ARBTR AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
»—A—H At 1 January 3,232 =
VEREY SEi-1Eke Impairment loss written back (247) =
B BER (B B 1B AT 2 B S 18 5% Exchange loss on impairment loss written back 189 =
ERBERE Impairment loss recognised 4 3,232
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 3,178 3,232

RECTERERAA

AL BARIR FE3() T8 2 & 5t BURHERR
BEE -

—E-AEER

The Group recognised impairment loss based on

policy stated in note 3(j).

the accounting
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21.

ESRUBERRERRE (&)

R—ZZE—RNRE+_A=+—H' AE
#13,839000t (—ZE—HF: AR
21,538,0007T) 2 B SRR M EIWEIEE
BHERERE ARESEH  BERHER
TERE 2 B 5 R UER & IR R IREI 53 A Fr
EZ BREE DATIN T -

21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, trade and bills receivable of approximately
RMB13,839,000 (2015: RMB21,538,000) were past due but not
impaired. Ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivable that
were past due as at the reporting date but not impaired, based on
the due date, is as follows:

—E-R¥ —E-NF

2016 2015

AR%F T ARETTT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

2iBHI1 £ 90H 1 to 90 days past due 6,083 14,122
2iBHI91 £ 180 H 91 to 180 days past due 7,075 5,340
21181 2365 H 181 to 365 days past due 4 1,667
23R EA#EA 365 B Over 365 days past due 677 409
13,839 21,538

R-ZZE—XRE+_A=1+—"8 AR
418,173,000 (ZE—HF: AR
373,093,0007T) 2 & 5 FEUER R FEUL SR RN
RBEY - INRERE - ZZ B 5 EBIR K IE
WEREHEZZRETNRERNEFEHE - M
ZERFP RO ER/R G o

EBHEREREZEZRKRESZRE
TRBHEMNEFER MZEEFPEAKE
MEELHERT - REUENEELZS &
BERREEERYEEAEHARTER
DR fER 28Uk E - A % FERET
TERERE - ARELEND BBERER
Bz E SRR AEAE R -

.5 PR A W0 2 PR LA T
e -

As at 31 December 2016, trade and bills receivable of approximately
RMB418,173,000 (2015: RMB373,093,000) were neither past
due nor impaired. These related to a large number of diversified
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
large number of diversified customers that had a good track record
of credit with the Group. Based on past credit record, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of trade receivables
past due but not impaired.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivable are
denominated in the following currencies:

—EB-AF —ThHF

2016 2015

AR®ET T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREE RMB 381,894 351,621
ETT US$ 50,118 43,010
432,012 394,631
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22. ANRERAEMERKIE

22. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E-RE¥ —E-hF

2016 2015

ARBT T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Fafr gt REmE s IA Advances to the suppliers 7,577 9,539

AN FIE Prepayments 8,258 1,282

F A FEUGRIR Other receivables 2,034 1,644
BRI EFHKIE Prepaid land lease payments — current portion

— mEnEhs (FisE14) (note 14) 1,571 1,293

19,440 13,758

23. RITRBREEER

NEE RTINS BB UAREE - 4
AR¥87,222,000t (ZE—HF : ARK
105,928,0007T) ° AR K AINERS - 78
R Bl 2 N E B G D) R 450 - S 0E RS i
BB TEHIE o

RITRBRSHERZEREERIATERE

23. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to approximately
RMB87,222,000 (2015: RMB105,928,000) were denominated in
RMB. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are denominated

in the following currencies:

—E—XF —E—RF

2016 2015

ARETT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

it HK$ 14,360 2,299
FETT US$ 82,738 9,434
AR RMB 87,222 105,928
184,320 117,661

RECTERBRAR TR FFER
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24. ESEMNIR 24. TRADE PAYABLES
AEBBEHERG T ZEEHNTT30E180 The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging from
ATE(ZFE—R2F NF30&E180HF 30 to 180 days (2015: 30 to 180 days). Ageing analysis of trade
%) c RIERH - BSENKRIREZAHAM payables at the reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
VEZ BRES DATIAT - follows:
—EB-RF —E—AF
2016 2015
AR¥ET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0£90H 0 to 90 days 35,948 21,659
91 £ 180 H 91 to 180 days 1,169 199
181 £ 365 H 181 to 365 days 1,351 831
itB3A 365 B Over 365 days 585 487
39,053 23,176
HOREMNENREEBEIAAREHE - A The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in RMB.
FIEHBREAME  HESHENERNERRE All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of trade
AT S ERERE A BRI - payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of their
fair values.
25. BNRAERAREMESTRIE 25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
123

—E-AF —T—hF
2016 2015
AR%TR AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

MEEWE  BE K& Payables for property, plant and equipment
R RIFRIR 46,974 51,117
T E FRIE Advances from customers 13,283 6,886
JER RS Accrued expenses 10,843 6,800
JER T & KAz Wages and welfare payables 11,339 6,330
JETEL A FRIE Other payables 53,895 27,783

FIEWA — RENE Deferred income — current portion (note 28)
(BtzE28) 3,773 3,640
140,107 102,556
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26. S|ITHER

HE_Z—FM-_ZT—AE+_-_A=1+—
AR BRITEFE—FARBARRER
TREBIETK - ZERITIEFRBAAR R
BB B A BIELR o

RITIE KA BREEY LAUB B EHE - RERIRTT
ERZIZFHERENT236%E2.87% (=
T—FF :222%%239%)  BUEAREH
EAZREREFERR -

27. B —XEHLRNKEBL—F
FFERRRAIA

BN - AR (AP =2HTEFEA
BEaBRWATESEATE ) KIALEE
& REBZERER -

e — B IEER AR FRL B|IER - IHEFR
2%ET B RAR T~ FEHERE -
28. IRIEWA

AEBZREWAEHBTEL - (FRilE
FERMEEREMA A

26.

27.

28.

BANK BORROWINGS

All bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were due
within one year and contain a repayment on demand clause. These
bank borrowings are guaranteed by the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in HK$.
Short-term bank borrowings are arranged at floating interest rates
ranged from 2.36% to 2.87% (2015: 2.22% to 2.39%) per annum
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risks.

AMOUNTS DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY/A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Amount due to a related company, in which three of the executive
Directors have beneficial interests and can exercise significant
influence, is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is unsecured, bears
interest at 2% per annum and due for repayment in 2017.

DEFERRED INCOME

The Group’s deferred income represents the government grants
obtained for subsidising the construction of the production lines
and ancillary facilities.

AR B WETTEZ DT Analysed for reporting purpose as:
—E-REF —ET—RF
2016 2015
AR¥ETT AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000

mBaE (BEREEES Current liabilities (included in accruals

RITERF I EAEFRIA)  and other payables) 3,773 3,640
ERBAE Non-current liabilities 9,918 12,361
13,691 16,001

FR —E58AREK3640,000T (==
—F4 - ARME3,449,0007T) HBEEH
U AFER o

RECTERBRAR TR FFER

During the year, an amount of RMB3,640,000 (2015:
RMB3,449,000) has been recognised in other income.
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29. A& 29. SHARE CAPITAL
&8
Amount
REE
Number of
shares
F & BET T AR¥T
‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
JARE Authorised:
FREES0.01 T mk Ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each
RZZE—hF—H—H " As at 1 January 2015,
—F—AFt+=-_A=+—H" 31 December 2015,
ZE—RF-HA—-AK 1 January 2016 and
—E-RF+ZA=+—H 31 December 2016 100,000,000 1,000,000
BEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
SRAESE0.01 LT @K Ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each
R—ZE—hFE—H—AH- As at 1 January 2015,
ZT-RF+ZA=+—HK 31 December 2015
SN and 1 January 2016 846,878 8,468 7,786
R IR R HARE AT 81 31T IR (D Shares issued under share
(FftsE 31) option scheme (note 31) 1,820 19 16 125
—E-RF+A=+—H As at 31 December 2016 848,698 8,487 7,802

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited



126

B RS R AR BT RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

30. f®&f& RESERVES
RE Group
REEREIRERBHASESEREEREY The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
BRI © are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
AT Company
MR 5
Foreign IR ERE
R EE currency Share REEH
Share translation option Retained &t
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(FiEa) GED) (B3ES)
(note a) (note e) (note f)
RZE-RF—F—R&H Balance at 1 January 2015 106,333 (41,769) - 123,987 188,551
BN -NERAES 2014 final dividend paid
(PzE11) (note 11) - - - (30,610) (30,610)
ERZE-RFHHERS 2015 interim dividend paid
(PzE11) (note 11) - - - (17,404) (17,404)
REEEURN XN Equity-settled share-based
HIEFAY payment expenses - - 2,736 - 2,736
REEEH Profit for the year - - - 52,927 52,927
Hiv2mlaE Other comprehensive income = 6,571 = = 6,571
WZZ-—RFF+-A=+—H  Balance at 31 December 2015
RZE- R F-A—RiH% and 1 January 2016 106,333 (35,198) 2,736 128,900 202,771
BENZE-RFRHES 2015 final dividend paid
(PzE11) (note 11) - - - (54,293) (54,293)
BERZE-~FRERE 2016 interim dividend paid
(MzE11) (note 11) - - - (29,611) (29,611)
REEENRNS [ 2 FUERS  Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses - - 3,793 - 3,793
REERET IR TR Shares issued under share
(BH5E31) option scheme (note 31) 3,087 - (837) - 2,250
TEERH Profit for the year - - - 85,970 85,970
Hiv 2wz Other comprehensive income - 10,702 - - 10,702
RZE—RF+-A=+—H Balance at 31 December 2016 109,420 (24,496) 5,692 130,966 221,582

RECTERERAA

—E-AEER
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30. & (&)
AEERAKDQT

() MKRtiEE
RERSESARA - NRAIRMIEE
BEAZES AR KT AREEAA
HEEREEZE D IRBLE BHIR - NARA
Bt HEERBRXBERT A
& o

Rl

FiplERIERIEAEENR —STMFE
T2 ERMKETENB AR 28K
RE RIS M B A B b T 31T
ZARRRIBEERNESE

(b)

BB AES

A BINFR B 2 B A Rl 2 EF2 4
RIIRE - ZEWBRRETTHEBRE
Tl aTaEO L EREERMBAE
& HEEHENB@EMBAREME
RZ50% A1k - E—MRIERAT - B
PIECENRERERR  BBREEER
e A GFMERNRET B AR 2 £E
K& o B ATESBIEEARTE AT
MERE  BHEZHEIELREME
KZ25% °

(0

N

BREPEQEE (RZZEZTRHFEL)
R-ZFZTRNF— A —BRMATZERER
{5l - FEP BRI 2 A BB A BZAER
5% E 10% Z RSB RS N BT Qs
T Mame R A REE 2 SE8EFm
ARBEAEE 2 F1R - REETER
ZIERT  RREE P MEDIK

(d)

HNESEE S

SN BEE 4 ki s B2 T HR SR N 26 755 2 B 75
WRAELZIEENZH o IFHER
PEM L 3(e) TEN R ST BUR IR EE -

(e)

BREREE
R ERME TR EBRERIZE
JEEPHERR

(f)

30. RESERVES (Continued)

Group and Company

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Special reserve

This represents the difference between the paid in capital
of the PRC subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 2004 and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange for the control in these
subsidiaries.

Surplus reserve fund

Articles of association of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC require the appropriation of certain percentage
of their profits after income tax each year to the surplus
reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of their registered
capitals. In normal circumstances, the surplus reserve fund
shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation
into registered capital and expansion of the subsidiaries’
production and operation. For the capitalisation of surplus
reserve fund into registered capital, the remaining amount
of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered
capital.

Public welfare fund

Pursuant to relevant regulations before the enactment of
Company Law of the PRC (revised in 2005) on 1 January
2006, the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC made
allocation from their profits after income tax at the rate of
5% to 10% to the public welfare fund. Public welfare fund
can only be utilised on capital nature items for collective
welfare of employees and is not distributable other than in
liquidation.

Foreign currency translation reserve
This reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3(e).

Share option reserve
Cumulative expenses were recognised on the granting of
share options to the employees over the vesting period.

Annual Report 2016 Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
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31.

RECTERERAA

LU 3 XY 2 FRIH 31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
PiN/NES] ) = /\EﬁLﬂ /U H RN —I8 ﬁ% The Company adopted share option schemes on 4 October 2006
Pt & ( L TREBKRETE]) - (the “2006 Share Option Scheme”) and 20 May 2016 (the “2016
E/\_g—/\iﬁﬂ +H ?mimjj—lﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂéé Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
FEI (2T REHEREE] ) BHEER rewards to the Directors, eligible employees, suppliers, customers,
ED&@*‘\E%T%“JZF%@ZQEEX MIELHER 2 any shareholder of each member of the Group or associated
=577 - BREASBEEAKE QR SRS AR company or any of their respective associates, and advisers or
ZEE ABWRES - HER TP RR consultants of the Group who contribute to the success of the
XEFH = EZE»P%@/\TZFEIZEEFEHZQﬁ;’EU Group. The 2006 Share Option Scheme became effective for a
A ZEERFEREGEHH_ZT /\¢+ period of 10 years commencing on 4 October 2006 and up to
AIUA ﬁ_ixﬁl BREATF - RBZZZXR 40,000,000 options entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for
TR NRRE ST &I AT % 5 % 40,000,000 17 BB AR up to 40,000,000 shares may be granted under the 2006 Share
- ET%ﬁT—rﬁ/\*&ﬂ 28 %% 40,000,000 Option Scheme, which was terminated on 20 May 2016. The
fghgtn o —FF /\Eﬁﬁﬂxﬁé HEDR-T granted outstanding options continue to be valid and exercisable in
—A~EFRAZTHKLE ERBERTEZ accordance with the terms of the 2006 Share Option Scheme. As at
B AR IR — SR N F IR 2 2 (G 31 December 2016, number of shares in respect of which options
BEAHMRRA] FIT6E - E’\_ T—RFT=H had been granted and remained outstanding under the 2006 Share
=+t—H8 BE-_ZTFEREFEC Option Scheme was 14,340,000 (2015: 16,940,000), representing
BEBERKRITEZERERS ERHEE 1.7% (2015: 2.0%) of the issued share capital of the Company at
#%14,340,000% (=ZF— A 4 : 16,940,000 the date of this report. The 2016 Share Option Scheme has become
i) - *H”‘E/\Zli#ﬁi HEAARRRIEBITIRA 2 effective for the periods of 10 years commencing on 20 May 2016
1.7% —RF:20%)° —E—NFE and up to 84,687,800 option entitling the holders thereof to
% e JF%UEE_ /\¢£H —t+HBES subscribe for up to 84,687,800 shares may be granted under the
BREF - BB —NFRRET SR 2016 Share Option Scheme. During the year, there was no share
&% 84,687 8001\%1&% MYTHESE option granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme.
NHEFI 2085 % 84,687,800 RAR(D © F A -
jﬁ#ﬁﬁ%:g—/_\iﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂjEﬁ%ﬁé °
RZE—REK— 3 —RAFF+_A=+— Details of the specific categories of options outstanding as at 31
=0 ﬁiﬁﬂz@%ﬁﬂ&uﬁ FFHAT - December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
ERAER MRITEBRESRE
Category of REAH RERS THEHM fifeE Number of share
grantee Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price options outstanding
ZE-RE —“T-81fF
2016 2015
MBS L () “Z-REEATR ZERELRATE ZERELATHE 45T - 140,000
R =&+ ANA
Ms. Shi Huifang (note) 10 July 2015 10 July 2016 10 July 2016 to HK$1.45
9 July 2023
“E-RFEATR ZEAFLATRE 2 tFLATHE B¥145TT 140,000 140,000
“E-=FtANAB
10 July 2015 10 July 2017 10 July 2017 to HK$1.45
9 July 2023
3 “Z-RFEATR CERELATE ZE-RFLATHE 1457 6,260,000 8,360,000
“Z-=FE+ANR
Employees 10 July 2015 10 July 2016 10 July 2016 to HK$1.45
9 July 2023
“F-RFEATE ZEFtATA ZE-tFtRATRE A4S 7,940,000 8,300,000
CE-=FrANA
10 July 2015 10 July 2017 10 July 2017 to HK$1.45
9 July 2023
14,340,000 16,940,000
Wizt - e R T ARSI EE WAESTE Note: Ms. Shi Huifang is an employee of Weifang Parasia and is the spouse

FIIREZRS  ARREFIEEZHE
Ao

—E-AEER

of Mr. Wang Zijiang who is a Director and therefore an associate of
Mr. Wang Zijiang.
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of the year

31. MR ZHE (&) 31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
TR AR R TR AR AE R B B AN hN i T 1T Movements and weighted average exercise prices of the Company’s
(8 : share options are as follows:
InFEF T
TEE 1118
Weighted Weighted
average 2 gE| average B
exercise price Number exercise price Number
—E—RF —E-RF —E—hF —E—hF
2016 2016 2015 2015
REMIMAITE  Outstanding at beginning BE1.45 7T 16,940,000 = =
of the year HK$1.45
FARH Granted during the year - - M 1.45 7T 17,000,000
HK$1.45
FRITE Exercised during the year 1,45 7T (1,820,000) = -
HK$1.45
F AR Forfeited during the year HB#1.457T (780,000) 1 45T (60,000)
HK$1.45 HK$1.45
REREAITE  Outstanding at the end 14,340,000 16,940,000

RAFER » MARITEBREZITEEESD
1450 (ZE—HF : BE1457T) M
EEHBA N A6 5F (ZE—HRF 75
F)o

F R M ARTT I B AR #E 42 £+ B 6,260,000 17
BERE (ZZ2—R2F: &) EHGBRAUTT
i o

FRITEERES BAOINEFEHRE A
1597 (ZE—RF : #) -

BE_T-HF+-A=+—-BLEE B
B 1 SR BRI 2 B T DA BRI
0.547T °

ATHREERIRBE—_F—AFT-A
=t BLEFEREBAKERY 2 BRAER
SR LB 2 R A (EARR I -

The exercise price of share options outstanding at the end of the
year was HK$1.45 (2015: HK$1.45) and their weighted average
remaining contractual life was 6.5 years (2015: 7.5 years).

Out of the total number of options outstanding at the end of the
year, 6,260,000 share options (2015: Nil) had been vested and were

exercisable.

The weighted average share price at the date of options exercised
during the year was HK$1.59 (2015: Nil).

The weighted average fair value of each option granted during the
year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$0.54.

The following information is relevant in the determination of the
fair value of options granted during the year ended 31 December
2015 under the share option schemes operated by the Group.
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31.

32.

RECTERERAA

LUR G X 2 FIE (&) 31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
—E-AF
2015
FiT BB A FE (B AR A Option pricing model used ZIEA BhpEEA
Binomial lattice
R B ARARE Share price at grant date M 1.45 7T
HK$1.45
1T1E(E Exercise price S 45T
HK$1.45
N E L Weighted average contractual life 84
8 years
SELEN Expected volatility 54.445%
A BAAR BOR A R Expected dividend rate 3%
EE A= Risk-free interest rate 1.579%

RZZE—1F  BREAKEDZZBENE
IRFEEBRERHET o
fTESRMEE B8F
BEBEARREGEEBRABRTNEEWHE K
VERIEE - ERIEER KSR ES A
MEHE  RBERHE BT XRARFKRLE
Em o AREHE BB D IR R
MZOLHAE - Bl AREBEEREEE
HHESERHNESREN4S% i - M
AEBHARERANREESERHNE
BB R A45% e o REE A SRR HRRE A
RERBE (I—ZE——F-_A=-+=8) &
MANFEBITE WA RBEESER=FE
BiT{E ©

R B
T ARERE -

R MR E PR TTEER

RIEREITEE = (5.5 x FHREFE - B
B FrEREHEMEN + ReMREFE
HE - BE + EREEELFE - THLE
BeFHE) x BREFTOARBREBERGER
AIEVR L E DL -

—E-AEER

32.

The binomial option pricing model was used to estimate the fair
value of the share options in 2015.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Pursuant to the JV Agreement entered into between the Company
and the JV Partner, Dekel Investment was incorporated. Dekel
investment then established Weifang Dekel to engage in the
research and development, manufacture and sales of a type of
specialty chemical for industrial use. The Company and the JV
Partner are respectively granted call and put options which entitled
the Company to require the JV Partner to sell the 45% JV Partner’s
interest in Dekel Investment, and entitled the JV Partner to require
the Company to purchase the 45% JV Partner’s interest in Dekel
Investment. Either the call or put options will be exercisable on the
sixth anniversary upon the effective date (i.e. 23 February 2012),
and subsequently for once every three years.

Pursuant to the JV Agreement, the exercise prices for the call and
put options are determined as follow:

Call option exercise price = (5.5 x average EBITDA* + cash and cash
equivalents - debt + effective net working capital - average net
working capital) x percentage of shareholding in the joint venture
held by the relevant party at the relevant time.
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32.

TEESHEE AfE (&)

AL EAREITEME = (4.4 x THRAHFE - B
B FERBHEMEN + ReMREFE
HE - B + ERZEESFR - THLE
BeFE) x BRETHOARBREBERSER
AR E DL

* REtHME -~ PREH - e K 85A0 27

RIERERLHREY NN ITES R
BE/ABKREBERS BHNLSRAAER
RRIERBDEE A -

REEFEEY  BREMREELRZLH
BAGB—HEHNAE AUEENERAK
BRBRERARERIER - MRERE
ROHHIEARETEL RN - HENEE, &
R4 RS FE 1R s (R AR FEFR 2E

PTHES R T AR — B BEEL A L
EFIER - WENFFE40(v) T EVERTE T4
CREBE BER-_ZE—REt+t-A=1—
HEBY(EEMITEG R —R"EF+=
A=+—8 FRBEEETNZITESHE
EZAREAARR2,993,0007T (ZF—H
F A RBaEARKE7,3250007T) ©
I AR EREARE 10,318,000 (=
— R : AR%3,161,0007T) BFEFEANHER
B UERKIER ©

32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Pull option exercise price = (4.4 x average EBITDA* + cash and
cash equivalents - debt+ effective net working capital - average net
working capital) x percentage of shareholding in the joint venture
held by the relevant party at the relevant time.

* Earning before interest, income tax, depreciation and amortisation

The derivative financial asset/liability that may become receivable/
payable under the call/put option is initially recognised at fair value
and at each reporting date within non-current assets/liabilities.

The call option asset and put option liability shall be re-measured
at each reporting date, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated income statement. In the event that the call/put
option lapses unexercised, the corresponding asset/liability will be
derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to profit or loss.

The derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value by using
the Binomial Lattice Model, which has been measured as described
in note 40(v). Derivative financial assets/liabilities were revalued
as at 31 December 2016 by an independent valuation firm. As
at 31 December 2016, the fair value of derivative financial assets
under non-current assets was RMB2,993,000 (2015: derivative
financial liabilities of RMB7,325,000). Accordingly, fair value gain
of RMB10,318,000 (2015: RMB3,161,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement during the year.
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33.

T—F+=A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

ERATNR-ZZE—ARFT+=ZA=1+ 33. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

— BB B R T POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
=F—REF —F1F
2016 2015
BisE AR®F T AREEFIT
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
EEHAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current assets
M - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 1 5
KB AR 2 Investment in subsidiaries 6 =
PTESRMEE Derivative financial assets 2,993 =
R—RELN T2 Interests in a joint venture 48,416 48,416
51,426 48,421
REBEE Current assets
JE U B =) IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 184,512 153,614
B —REERR)FKIE Amounts due from a joint venture 32,776 31,044
JE YR B, Dividend receivables 10,067 9,429
TR IR K Bt FE UK IE Prepayments and other receivables 197 284
RTINS E5% Bank and cash balances 11,502 10,846
239,054 205,217
RBasE Current liabilities
132 JE S R A5 BR 70 I ELAth & 1~ 7B Accruals and other payables 1,100 705
SRITIER Bank borrowings 56,816 32,072
JEN — M B A B FRIE Amounts due to a subsidiary 3,180 2,979
61,096 35,756
REBEEFE Net current assets 177,958 169,461
HWEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 229,384 217,882
FRBARE Non-current liabilities
PTESRAE Derivative financial liabilities - 7,325
- 7,325
EEFE Net assets 229,384 210,557
= EQUITY
fig A Share capital 29 7,802 7,786
fEE Reserves 30 221,582 202,771
R Total equity 229,384 210,557
= EFHH
GAO FENG GUO XITIAN
g o
Director Director

RECTERBRAR TR FFER
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34. AMB AR 2R 34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

R-E—RER_ZF-AF+-_HA=+—
A AEEHBRRZFHENAT

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2016
and 2015 are as follows:

EMRYL/ BRTEE/HE
RIREELE SR 2 EfE RAREL RER/
Place of Nominal value of EEEFRAED
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of ownership
£B establishment paid-up registered interests/voting rights/ ~ FE#H
Name and operations share capital profit share Principal activities
HE FEHE
Direct Indirect
BRRERAERA] BB BT 100% - REBR
Great Growth Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
BiniERARAA] BB BT 100% - REBR
Great Spirit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
RIEBRARAR] BB BT 100% - REBR
Great Promise Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
AEBRERERAR BB 78%10,0007C 70% - REER
Tiande Medical Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
EBRAF BB 75%10,000 7 - 100% HERAILIER
Tech Chem Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Sales of fine chemical products
BEERER AR RERLES 26857 - 100%  REER
Smartcham Holdings Limited The BV Us$268 Investment holding
ERLXARAT RERLES 1251%7 - 100%  REER
Smartpoint Enterprises Limited The BV US$1,251 Investment holding
BEERERAR RERLES 4TTETC - 100%  REER
Techsmart Holdings Limited The BV Us$477 Investment holding
ASRFCEBRAT] GETRPINE 600,000 7T - 100%  H# - RERHERBLIER
Weifang Common Chem Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC, WOFE US$600,000 Research and development,
manufacture and sales of
fine chemical products
HEEMIERAR RESNEEALR ARH5,000,0007C - 100% &% HERSHEAIER
Shanghai Dehong Chemical The PRC, WOFE RMB5,000,000 Research and development,
Company Limited selling and distribution of
fine chemical products
AP BBRAT RESNEEALR 5,200,000 %7 - 100%  HiE% - SERHERAIER
Weifang Parasia Chem Co., Ltd The PRC, WOFE US$5,200,000 Research and development,

Annual Report 2016
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34, RMIBAR R (&)

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

EMRL,/ BRTEE/HE
RIREELE A 2 EfE RAREE RER/
Place of Nominal value of EEENE A
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of ownership
£B establishment paid-up registered interests/voting rights/ ~ FE#H
Name and operations share capital profit share Principal activities
E# FEHE
Direct Indirect
A EERMEIARRAR RN 10,800,000% 7T - 100%  HiE% - SERHERAIER
Weifang Binhai Petro-Chem Co., Ltd  The PRC, WOFE US$10,800,000 Research and development,
manufacture and sales of
fine chemical products
THERBRHIETRR G AR#10,000,00070 - 100%  Hi% - SERHERAIER
BRAH The PRC RMB$10,000,000 Research and development,
Jiangsu Chunxiao Pharmaceutical & manufacturing and sale of
Chemical Company Limited fine chemical products
RABERERAR ESNEEALR AE#10,732,9207T - 100%  Bi% - RERHEREESR
Deling Medical Machinery The PRC, WOFE RMB$10,732,920 Research and development,

Co., Limited
RAFFER  BECAMNBRRZITEEE

35. &I
KRR - NEBZAEMT

manufacturing and sale of
medical products

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

35. COMMITMENTS

The Group’s commitments at the reporting date are as follows:

—E-R¥ —T—hF
2016 2015
AR®ET T AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BRAKEYE  BER Commitments for acquisition

RAEHRSE of property, plant and equipment 265,949 99,209

m—RELEAREHT Shareholder’s loans to a joint venture (note)
RERE (F7E) 60,683 58,926
326,632 158,135

MiE : IRIBS SR RATEIGR G - NATRE
BAARFFEZERRESS% RiERER
HEBEKRRER - £7 411,880,000 B
TR E—RNF+_A=+—08 K&
EAZRAESREAELHORRERRES
8,305,000 Byt (KA R 60,683,0007T) °

RECTERBRAR TR FFER

Note: The Company agrees to make shareholder’s loans of EURO11,880,000
to Dekel Investment in accordance with 55% shareholding of the
Company in Dekel Investment, which is subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the JV Agreement. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group is committed to make the remaining balance of a shareholder’s
loan of EURO8,305,000 (approximately RMB60,683,000) to Dekel
Investment accordingly.
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36. REMEZHRAE 36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND

EAHBA
NZZE—XNE+-_A=+—H8 BETITH
HEEHE  AEB 2z BRREHREWRRE
T

COMMITMENTS
As Lessor

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

—EB-REF —ET—1F

2016 2015

ARET ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 891 430
RE_EFRAFN In the second to fifth year inclusive

(BRERMF) 1,121 871

hF& After fifth year 2,366 2,565

4,378 3,866

REARENKEHERY  HRLARER
FHR—E-_+FITEF - HEHRR—REX
M HERIFZSE -

EREEA

NR-ZB—RE+-_A=1+—08 " BETATH
HEEEE  AEBE v BESEBEERMZE
T

Under operating lease arrangements of the Group, the leases are
negotiated for an average terms of one to twenty years. The terms
of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits.

As Lessee

As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases payable are as
follows:

—E—RE —E—RF

2016 2015

AR¥T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FA Within one year 732 616
REZEZFAFNH In the second to fifth year inclusive

(BiEERWME) - 540

732 1,156

REHENFIEAKRERESE THAEME
e HBMEARERTFHS—E=ZFT
- MAEHANESEE - BTEEEM

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for
certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an average term of
one to three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do
not include contingent rentals.
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37.

RECTERERAA

XS

RZE—RFNA @ AEETKRET&#HE
BEZ 100 % RHE - sZ AR EENEE - &
EXHEERMEETIER -

TEHFREWBEANAIHREEMBENR
RES:

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In September 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interests in Jiangsu Chunxiao, a company whose principal
activity is research and development, manufacture and sales of fine
chemical products.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of Jiangsu
Chunxiao as at the date of acquisition were:

AREFIT

RMB'000

W - B Rk (M5E13) Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 65,483

Jaff A E FKIE (H5E14) Prepaid land lease payments (note 14) 11,400
BEWE BERREZ Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

BEfETE plant and equipment 509
RITRIR SRR Bank and cash balances 132
FE Inventories 25,664
H 5 K H b UG IR Trade and other receivables 11,332
H 5 R E M FIE Trade and other payables (90,848)
FEEFIBEE (IFE19) Deferred tax liabilities (note 19) (2,111)

21,561
HERE Cash consideration 39,229
R (ff3E16) Goodwill (note 16) 17,668
RERE Cash consideration (39,229)
W WERS 2R & Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Re%EER 132
IRy 2 IR &M Cash outflow on acquisition (39,097)

EOREMERREZAABEBEARE
11,332,000 (E%8) ° & EW GBI AR RE -
WIEEH A BB E 22 A LS8 o

e R ARE17,668,0007T - NEEAMRTIUK
e MEEeRREIREZSEE HMKA
WMEBEREARENRAXEGHEHAMESL
B TR A 5 R B RO (B (E

BERR IHEEERNASENEE
REAMBE =D B 5B A R % 47,216,000 7T &
A B #1,299,0007C ° i WBE 7 — T — X
F—R—HET AEENEEEMGF
15 Bl A AR 1,361,569,000 7T A KR #
222,817,0007C c WEZBEREHSE - W

PRRAUA/AREERBER T —"F—A
—HEKRER TS EREZRNERE R
FARERE - TNERIEREIRIRERENTEAR -

—E-AEER

The fair value of trade and other receivables amounted to
RMB11,332,000 (gross amount). None of these receivables have
been impaired and it is expected that the full contractual amounts
can be collected.

The goodwill of RMB17,668,000, which is not deductible for tax
purposes, comprises the acquired workforce and the value of
expected synergies arising from the combination of the acquired
business with the existing operations of the Group.

Since the acquisition date, Jiangsu Chunxiao has contributed
RMB47,216,000 and RMB1,299,000 to Group's revenue and
profit or loss respectively. If the acquisition had occurred on 1
January 2016, the Group's revenue and profit would have been
RMB1,361,569,000 and RMB222,817,000 respectively. This pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2016, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future performance.
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37. ©¥ESH (&) 37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
HLUk AR R 2 B 49 AR ¥ 444,000 T E 1 The acquisition-related costs of approximately RMB444,000 have
X8 - WEFTATTHAX been expensed and are included in administrative expenses.
38. BABEA RS 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ AEEHEFBITRFANFTINZSN (@) During the year, the Group entered into the following
T~ transactions with related parties:
AL —T—hF
2016 2015
AR%TR ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
T —KEEHE AR Rental expenses to a related company in
(ZBHITES which three of the executive Directors
BB EmiEs have beneficial interests and can
WRIATTEER exercise significant influence
TEN) HeRxX 521 540

A—REZEAFHEE  Sale of goods to a joint venture
& in 36,662 15,062

A—ZREEAFRE  Purchase of goods from a joint venture

& in 11,807 175
137
A—xXKAaEAFMEL  Rental Income from a joint venture
Ha WA 200 200
RIBVIEHE Interest income from finance lease
A—xK&aE AT from a joint venture
Y B AL B M A 966 1,054
A—XKALAEEL  Interestincome on a loan to a joint venture
ERPSAEWA 1,120 1,225
[ — X R A Acquisition of property, plant and
(ZBHITES equipment from a related company in
OB EmiEs which three of the executive Directors
WA LAATIE R have beneficial interests and can
RN BAME - exercise significant influence
55 M aR i - 13,800
(b) FEBEABZMESHRMIFE10- (b)  The remuneration of key management personnel are set out
in note 10.
39. ERFBRERS 39. SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
FAN - RHWE - BERREBENNKIEE S During the year, the payables for property, plant and equipment
%E [FERT AR BR R A FERIE ] N - &F was included under “Accruals and other payables”, details of which
TEEAIFE 25 © are set out in note 25.
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40. £RLE R EE
ﬁﬁlﬁﬁZi@H@ﬁﬁ'ﬁ%ﬂﬁ(

40.

%f"f”ﬁgﬂ e R FERER) - EERRRRBIE

o RNEE ZBER ﬂi%i%vﬂm%
T—H‘EEUZ"HH{ i‘“/\ =R A S
EMBRBFR2EBAZE - NEEE B

BEEMAXNSBAREERRNIES - T
B EFESrTHEIBEEREGERRETS

BEERNEE U REIEE
T RUE R R RS o

BERER

AEBEIRSREBENMEESREE - T
ABELENE AEBEMAZREANERE
BB 7 T 3CE A © b4 - B RE40(v) B A &
BRI OMEREENABHE -

SN [ B

ARAREETEHRS - EERARE
TIABHE RETTAHE » RSB EH S

o ZRER (B3R 3 M HA EL B SMNE X
A EF&%E%‘JE?\\E%#E&% SN
SEKZERINERKE - T EEBR
BERER ;TFE?(@I\D—LEM ©

(i)

RZE—ARFF+_A=+—08 AR
B AR MR TTRIMEE R EF 5%
e Efb ] A =M TE - BJAE
B F A EEF KRB R FIE 8, 5

4 ANR#3,394,000T (ZE— R F:
AR¥861,0007T) ' TEREARMUE

TCRHERYE 5 IR UK AR P B0 I 3 Was
B -

BE—TAF+-_A=1t—HULFE
R 15 R PR R B R D AT T3 A8 )
AR -

RECTERBRAR TR FFER

1 December 2016

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group currently does not
have any written financial risk management policies and guidelines.
However, the Directors meet periodically and cooperate closely with
key management to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed are described below.
See also note 40(vi) for a summary of financial assets and liabilities
by category.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk as certain of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated
in HK$ and US$. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2016, if the RMB had weakened/
strengthened 5% against HK$ and US$ with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained
profits would have been approximately RMB3,394,000 (2015:
RMB861,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain/loss on trade receivables denominated
in US$.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 had been prepared on the
same basis.
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40. ¢REMRERE (&)
(i) FREE

AEEEE 2 M REBERER P RA
5 2FBAER - REEIWAREREADT
EENEFNRRER - AT - EEES
ERNEER  TEERNETERY
HEANERER o

BRBEDH
TREREAFVFBAEEFEEF
MARBB & F 8 0] ge B IR A9 A R & B)
+-05% (=T —FHF : +/- 0.5%) HY
BURE o STER T AREERRS B H
i emEERABEAALE - FTEE
fth A B R R IS T o

(i)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating interest
rate borrowings. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
profit for the year and retained profits to a possible change in
interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2015: +/- 0.5%), with effect from
the beginning of the year. The calculations are based on the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities held at the reporting
date. All other variables are held constant.

REE R AR B F
Profit for the year and
retained profits
AREETTT
RMB'000

+0.5% -0.5%

—EBE—XEt+=-A=1+—81
—E—RFt+_HA=1+—H

31 December 2016
31 December 2015

451

276 (276)

1B B AR ABERATS - RERTF
KPR ARAELE - Bl
BERBHAER KK+ =168 HH
ABAELEBFR R -

HE_T-—AF+-_A=+—HILFE
HRA T SRR P O B R D AT T5 1R A8 ()
EAERS

EEREE

RITERSEROEERRER - RE
EHFHBEEREETR -

(iii)

AEFEEHEBR - LEROARER
B BPHEEm °

AEEWESANEESTREK - 5
ReoMEZERR REFH o Am -
BEEFMAEMFEAFTE HRZE
—~NEFE+-A=+—HNESEKEN
73% (ZZF—FHF :73%) - BE=R
BIEERR  BEREBSBNELEME
HKHEZREFRE  tMEERERE
FREMAERAEERR o

(iii)

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents the management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rate over the next
twelve months period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 had been prepared on the
same basis.

Credit Risk

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because
the counterparties have high credit ratings.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
with exposure spread over a number of customers and
counterparties. However, the geographical location of
customers is mainly on the PRC which accounted for 73%
(2015: 73%) of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2016. In order to minimise the credit risk, management will
endeavor to build an extensive customer base that spread over
the world, which can minimise the credit risk by geographical
location.
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40. ¢REMRER (&)
(iv) FRBEMES

EEERAERRE  AKEEERK
HREEERASTMNASRASEFE
HE - FRAKEZEMTNES - N
RFEASRERBNTE  TART
BTSRRI R ERMR SR E R ED|H
MEmMEELIPNSRAREHREE

é\o

R R B ERRITHE A A KE
FERTTHUENRBARIBRERFLT
B EERR FIRAKEBRA AR
MERENABHBERE - NEEE
ERHWMEZEES  BABMNBRIFT
T o AKEWEREE TRITEKIER
HRBESHHR

TREULIRS KARBEIR RO EIELT
EeRARIHBER

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity Risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

As the Group has short term bank borrowings which
could be renewed on an annual basis at the discretion of
the Group within limit approved by banks, the Directors
are of the opinion that, taking into account the presently
available facilities and internal financial resources of the
Group, the Group has sufficient working capital for its
present requirements. The Group also obtained certain bank
borrowings as a source of liquidity.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the
non-derivative financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

AR =Rz
EEX —FR AERAR
Within Between —-ERER Total BHEE
3 months or 3 months Between  undiscounted Carrying
on demand to 1 year 1to 5 years amount amount
AR®TT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-RE 2016
BHENE  ERAN  Trade and accruals
R REMENTE and other payables 103,222 58,882 - 162,104 162,104
RITRRR Bank borrowings 390 57119 - 57,569 56,816
BR—ZFBHARHE  Amount due to a
related company 1,191 - - 1,191 1,191
EN—BIFERRRFE  Amount due to a
non-controlling
shareholder - 3,422 - 3,422 3,376
At Total 104,803 119,483 - 224,286 223,481
—Z-If 2015
BHENE  ERAN  Trade and accruals
ERREMENTE and other payables 82,082 33,124 - 115,206 115,206
RITRER Bank borrowings 186 32,432 - 32,618 32,072
At Total 82,268 65,556 - 147,824 147,278

RECTERERAA

—E-AEER
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40. ¢REMRERE (&)

(v) ERSHBRRKREINAR
ExHE
T35 Atk A B
BT A :

MEmITAR

E—H5  BRAEREEETRTS
P HORIE CRISTE) :

FBA  BRE R B ERRES)
ZEESRABNABERAE  IRE
& (AMER) s (AR B EH) M
UNER

F=ZMA WRERABENSHE
MEESREMNBAE (TABEHEA

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(v) Fair Value Measurements Recognised in the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

&) -
e EHA ] Rt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HisE NS ARETT ARETT ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“E-RE 31 December 2016
+=A=1-A
BE: Assets:
TTZR tBEFABER Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss
-TESREE — Derivative finandial assets 32 - - 2,993 2,993
“E-Tf 31 December 2015
+=B=t-8
afE: Liabilities:
RAR B ABRR Financial (liabilities) at fair value
o8 (BfR) through profit or loss
-TEeRaRE — Derivative financial liabilities 32 = = (7,325) (7,325)

TESBMTANAARETER AR

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is estimated

FERERIEE -
EENFUBEBAE

%

IEFHEARARA ([INEFHERKA])

TRERR R

using a binomial lattice model.

Significant unobservable inputs

Growth rate 1.5%
Weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") 15%
Expected volatility 41%

BREEEAS% @ TTEERMTERAR
WS A5 AN A RE 112,000 7T © Mg &
ETE5% @ (TESRTAEARBERE
R A A R 109,000 7T ©

Increased growth rate by 5% would increase the fair value
gain of derivative financial instruments by RMB112,000 whilst
decreased growth rate by 5% would decrease the fair value
gain of derivative financial instruments by RMB109,000.
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40. ¢REMRER (&)

(v) EHSESHHRRREINDN
Bt & (&)

MEFEHERE A EFAS% - 574
SMIAERAREBEREBERIS ARE
1,995,0007C ; mhN#EFHIEARKAT
5% @ {TASR T AR R EWEGIE
JIAR¥ 2,561,000 7T ©

TEERRIE EF 5% @ PTESRMIT AR
Bz > AR 46,0007T : T8
HRIETME5% @ fTAESBTARARE
2= 4 hn A % 43,000 7T ©

R M Bk -

FALEAR R 2 FRERE -

PBERE=ZRINEREE BEME
RREERM HRESFEER A BEM S
BENERBAE - HAFINERTE
HAAE R B B R A SRR B BR A TS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(v) Fair Value Measurements Recognised in the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(Continued)

Increased WACC by 5% would decrease the fair value gain
of derivative financial instruments by RMB1,995,000. Lower
WACC by 5% would increase the fair value gain of derivative
financial instruments by RMB2,561,000.

Increased expected volatility by 5% would decrease the fair
value gain of derivative financial instruments by RMB46,000
respectively. Lower expected volatility by 5% would increase
the fair value gain of derivative financial instruments by
RMB43,000.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the
year.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.

The financial assets/liabilities classified in Level 3 use valuation
techniques based on significant inputs that are not based
on observable market data. The financial instruments within
this level are reconciled from opening to closing balances as
follows:

S —F—FF
2016 2015
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
$TEE®MEE  (81&) Derivative financial assets/(liabilities)
m—HA—H At 1 January (7.325) (10,486)
TEERBT AR Fair value gain on derivative
N EWE financial instruments 10,318 3,161
W+=—RA=+—8 At 31 December 2,993 (7,325)

FR PTESRIAERAABARFIAR
#10,318,0007C (ZB—RF : ARK
3,161,000 70) EfEAR A WERIER ©

RECTERBRAR TR FFER

During the year, fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments of RMB10,318,000 (2015: RMB3,161,000) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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40. ¢REMRERE (&)

(vi) ZERB s HNEREEREE
M=

SN R_B—RAFR_FT—AFt+=
A=t—BrEEReREENMAEN
REEMEATOE - ERNERESRT
AERIMAIZEERNGTE  F232
B RE 3() K2 3(n) BYFREA -

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

subsequent measurement.

(vi) Summary of Financial Assets and Liabilities by
Category

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
recognised as at 31 December 2015 and 2016 may also be
categorised as follows. See notes 3(j) and 3(n) for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments affects their

—E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
ARET T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREE Financial assets
BAREFTAEERR  Finandial instruments at fair value
TEIA: through profit or loss:
-PTEEMEE — Derivative financial assets 2,993 =
BN EWRGRIE Loans and receivables:
- BB ETIE  — Finance lease receivable 13,414 14,210
- BRI — Trade receivables 183,977 159,804
- R EE — Bills receivable 248,035 234,827
- Efb el E IR — Other receivables 2,034 1,644
-BR—REERF - Amounts due from a joint venture
RIH 52,883 40,546
- IRIT IR — Bank and cash balances 184,320 117,661
687,656 568,692
LRas Financial liabilities
BAREFTAEEZER  Finandial instruments at fair value
TRIA: through profit or loss:
-PTESmARE — Derivative financial liabilities - 7,325
R AN G2/ Financial liabilities measured at
TREE: amortised cost:
- B RN — Trade payables 39,053 23,176
- BRI RAERER R — Accruals and other payables
H AR FRIB 123,051 92,030
- SRITER — Bank borrowings 56,816 32,072
- BN —REBEAR - Amount due from a related company
18 1,191 —
- BRI —F3EEARAR R — Amount due from a non-controlling
IE shareholder 3,376 =
223,487 154,603

Annual Report 2016

Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited

143



144

B RS R AR BT RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZZT—XF+=A=+—HBIEF For the year ended 31 December 2016

41.

RECTERERAA

EXEE
AEBENEAEE B RENERAEERRE
NFEEEE - URARERBRKEREmE
MERETE(E - 1 ABIR A HIRBE R

AEBESERZERANEE LEREEN
R - EENEBREAERE - [ERN
HABEAGER  AREAARRRRKEN
REE - BITHAR - RARREREAR - EEGH
BEERERNEEERE -

AEBETRIEEHHEHABEARZ L RER
REZENR - WHERNFAETAHN TR -

R¥RE BRGSO -

41.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods commensurately
with the level of risk.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristic of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital
to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as set out in the table below.

The debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:

—E-RF —E-hF
2016 2015
AR®BFT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EE (ﬁEﬁ%?&(&KQ —%  Borrowings (Bank borrowing and

FEPERRAR R A B R Y principal amount of the loan from
rEeH) a non-controlling shareholder) 60,170 32,072
W RITRIRB AR Less: Bank and cash balances (184,320) (117,661)
BEFE Net asset (124,150) (85,589)
AR Total equity 1,317,627 1,178,000
EEERLE = Debt-to-equity ratio TERA N/A AEA N/A

—E-AEER
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